
  

DESERT WATER AGENCY   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JULY 19, 2016                                                                      REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  A. June 28, 2016  CIOFFI                                                  
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Executive – July 14, 2016  CIOFFI   
                                         B. Conservation & Public Affairs – July 14, 2016  CIOFFI 

                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT  - JUNE 2016  BLOOMER                                                                        
  

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
PUBLIC HEARING ITEM (A) 

A. Public Hearing for the Purpose of Accepting and Responding to Public Comments  JOHNSON 
 on Public Health Goals Report 

 
B. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1141 Granting Retirement Status to Debbie Randall  KRAUSE 

 
C. Water Use Violation - Civil Penalty Hearings  KRAUSE 

 
8. PUBLIC INFORMATION  METZGER 
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 
 
9. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. June Water Production Comparison  KRAUSE 
B. Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project  KRAUSE  
C. Whitewater Power Plant – Renewable Market Adjusting Tariff  (Re-MAT) Update  JOHNSON                                                 

 
10. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
July 19, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
   
12. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8681 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 06/28/16 

 

                          2 
MINUTES                                     

OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
June 28, 2016 

 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach/Conserv. Manager ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 Victoria E. Morrell, Krieger & Stewart ) 
 
       

Attendance 

17513.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Vice President Stuart in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
   
17514.   President Cioffi called for approval of the June 7, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Ewing, the minutes were approved as written. 
 
17515.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on June 6 at approximately 12:00 p.m., 
Assistant Construction Superintendent Kuhlman responded to a hit hydrant 
at 68760 Summit Dr., in Cathedral City. An employee of Segundos Auto 
Repair backed a motorhome into the hydrant. A damage report and police 
report was filed. The water loss was from a small leak which ran for about 
45 minutes. The hydrant was repaired and is back in service. 
 
  On June 6 at approximately 8:30 a.m., staff responded to a 
stolen meter at 447 Juanita Dr. The thieves cut the front of the angle stop 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 06/07/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Fire Hydrant Damage-
68760 Summit Dr. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stolen Meter – 447 
Juanita Dr. 
 



8682 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 06/28/16 

 
and the backside meter coupling to take the meter. Staff replaced the angle 
stop, meter and backside meter coupling. There was no meter loss, the 
angle stop was off. A police report was filed. 
 
  On June 16 at approximately 8:30 a.m., staff responded to a 
hit fire hydrant on the east side of Perez Rd., north of E. Palm Canyon Dr. 
Staff was able to replace the bolts and gasket and put the hydrant back into 
service. The water ran for approximately ten minutes through a 6-inch 
hydrant bury. A police report was filed. 
     
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause stated with today’s special 
meeting, there are no items for consideration for the July 5 meeting. The 
Board may consider cancelling that meeting. 
 
  There was consensus by the Board to cancel the July 5 
meeting. Staff will send out the notice of cancellation.  
 
  In response to Director Ewing, Finance Director Krieger 
stated staff is meeting with NBS within the next few weeks; a study session 
will be planned after it is held.  
 
17516.  Vice President Stuart noted the minutes for the June 15, 2016 
Finance Committee were provided in the Board’s packet; further discussion 
will be held under Item 7-C. 
 
17517.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
        
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17518.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of May 2016. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating 
Fund received $1,653,708 in Water Sales Revenue, and $112,706 in 
Reclamation Sales Revenue. $6,737 was included in Miscellaneous 
Receipts (SCE Solar Field II Energy Rebate). $1,669,877 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 12% over budget, Year-to-
date Total Revenues are 12% over budget, and Year-to-date Total Expenses 
are 7% under budget. There were 22,308 active services as of May 31, 2016 
compared to 22,248 as of April 30, 2016 and 21,793 as of May 31, 2013. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer 
stated $8,258,941 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $31,590 was 
received in Groundwater Replenishment Assessments. $235,971 was 
received in State Water Project Refunds. $706,577 was paid out in State 
Water Project Charges and $25,754 paid to CVWD for Whitewater Basin 
Management. 

General Manager’s 
Report 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
Fire Hydrant Damage – 
Perez Rd./E. Palm Cyn. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
Future Board Meeting 
Schedule 
 
 
 
 
July 5 Board Meeting 
Cancelled 
 
 
 
NBS Rate Study 
 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Finance 06/15/16 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report-May 2016 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8683 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 06/28/16 

 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, $13,783 was received in 
Sewer Capacity Charges ($9,327.20 Elks Lodge, $4,454.84 in Sewer 
Contract payments). There were a total of 72 contracts with 29 delinquent 
(40%). $62,392 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17519.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for adoption of the 2015 Urban Water Management 
Plan. 
 
  Mr. Krause introduced Victoria Morrell, from Krieger & 
Stewart who helped in the plan preparation. Ms. Morrell is present to 
answer any questions the Board may have. Mr. Krause explained that the 
Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) is prepared by urban water 
suppliers every five years to support long-term resource planning and to 
ensure adequate water supplies for future demands. The report is due to the 
Department of Water Resources (DWR) in July 2016. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause indicated that K&S 
developed the plan in coordination with DWA staff. He noted the key 
differences between the 2010 and 2015 reports. He stated in order to adopt 
the 2015 UWMP, a noticed public hearing is required. A copy of the notice 
of public meeting and public hearing was sent to stakeholders on June 3. 
The notice of public hearing was published in The Public Record on June 
16 and June 23. There were no written comments received from the public. 
Staff recommends adoption of the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. 
 
  President Cioffi declared the public hearing open at 8:35 a.m. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board and no written comments regarding this item, President Cioffi closed 
the public hearing at 8:36 a.m. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve and adopt the 2015 
Urban Water Management Plan. After a second by Vice President Stuart, 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
17520.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for authorization to amend the 2015-16 United States 
Geological survey cooperative water resources program costs. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on June 2, 2016, representatives from 
DWA, CVWD, RCFC and USGS met to discuss the program for the period 
November 1, 2016 thru October 31, 2017. At the meeting, CVWD proposed 
the addition of a new gaging station located within Murray Canyon stream. 
CVWD has water rights for the stream source and SB88 requires a person 
who diverts 10 acre-feet of water per year or more under a permit or license 
to install and maintain a device or employ a method capable of measuring 
the rate of direct diversion, collection to storage and withdrawal or release 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (Cont.) 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
Public Hearing 
2015 Urban Water 
Mgmt. Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Open Public Hearing 
 
 
 
Close Public Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Amendment to 
2015-16 USGS 
Program Costs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8684 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 06/28/16 

 
from storage and to report to the state board, at least annually. A new 
gaging station will satisfy this new requirement and will allow for a more 
accurate measurement of the water inflow to the valley basin. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause said the proposed total 
costs for the new station installation, including telemetry equipment and 
data collection is $25,730 to be split evenly between DWA and CVWD. 
RCFC may also contribute, but has not yet committed. If RCFC agrees to 
share costs, then the total amount for DWA will be $8,577. Staff requests 
Board authorization to participate in the cost sharing for installation of the 
new Murray Canyon gaging station, amending the 2015-16 cooperative 
water resources program cost from $68,400 to $81,265. 
   
  Director Oygar made a motion to amend the 2015-2016 
USGS Survey Cooperative Water Resources Program costs. After a second 
by Director Ewing, the motion passed unanimously. 
   
17521.  President Cioffi asked Finance Director Krieger to present the 
Operating, General and Wastewater Budgets for 2016/2017. 
 
  Mr. Krieger noted that the Finance Committee has reviewed 
the budgets and amendments to the Operating fund for Turf Buyback 
rebates, Reserves and General fund were made. He stated once the Prop. 
218 process is complete later this year, staff will then request Board 
approval to augment the budget. 
   
  Director Ewing made a motion to adopt the 2016/2017 
Operating, General and Wastewater budgets. Vice President Stuart 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 
17522.  President Cioffi asked Finance Director Krieger to present 
staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1140 Establishing Tax Rate 
for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
  Mr. Krieger stated the proposed resolution will fix the tax rate 
of $0.10 per $100 of assessed valuation, as adopted in the 2016-2017 
General Fund budget, which is the same rate as 2015-2016. The resolution 
directs the County Board of Supervisors to levy such tax rate for the 2016-
2017 Fiscal Year on all taxable property within the Agency boundaries. 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1140 Establishing Tax Rate 
for 2016-2017. 
 
  Director Oygar moved to adopt Resolution No. 1140. 
President Cioffi seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Amendment to 
2015-16 USGS 
Program Costs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adoption of Fiscal Year 
2016/2017 Operating, 
General and 
Wastewater Budgets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1140 
Establishing Tax Rate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8685 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 06/28/16 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1140 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF  
DIRECTORS OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 
DETERMINING, CERTIFYING, AND DIRECTING 

2016-2017 LEVIES PURSUANT TO SECTION 27 
OF THE AGENCY ACT AS AMENDED 

 
17523.   Director Ewing, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer, Vice 
President Stuart, and President Cioffi noted their attendance at the AWWA 
conference held in Chicago. 
 
17524.   President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to 
provide a report on the June 16, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of 
the State Water Contractors, Inc. 
   
   Mr. Riddell noted in his absence, Ms. Deborah Kollars 
from BBK’s Sacramento office attended the meeting and her notes are 
provided in the report. He then reported on the following items: 1) Board 
Action Items, 2) Water Supply Report, 3) Energy Report, 4) Water Supply 
Objectives Update, 5) General Manager’s Report, 6) Legislation, and 7) 
Legal Counsel’s Report. 
 
17525.  At 9:30 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs 
Water District vs. Desert Water Agency. 
 
17526.  At 9:41 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
17527.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 9:42 a.m. 
 
 
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Resolution No. 1140 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
Directors Reports on 
AWWA Conference 
 
 
 
State Water Contractors 
Meeting - 06/16/16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

Page 1  

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
JULY 19, 2016 

  
  
 

 
 

 
On July 13 at approximately 8:30 a.m. staff responded to a stolen fire hydrant at the North 
West corner of Sepulveda Rd. and Los Felices. As staff was driving in the neighborhood, they 
found another stolen fire hydrant on the South West corner of Zanjero Rd. and Yorba Rd. There 
was no water loss due to the thieves turning the valves off. A police report was made.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Page 2  

 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
6/27/16        Meeting with MSWD 
7/14/16 Executive 
7/14/16 Conservation & Public Affairs 
 
Activities: 

Palm Springs and Cathedral City Population Projections and Seasonal Populations 
Perris Reservoir Seepage Water Supply Recovery 
Sites Reservoir Water Supply Opportunity 
E-Billing 
Outreach Talking Points 
USGS cooperative agreement 
IRWMP Round 3 Invoices 
IRWMP Turf Buy Back In Kind Contributions by Customer 
SWP Delta Charges 
State Drinking Water Program Fees 
Well 6  and Well 32 Water Quality Remediation issues 
Whitewater Ranch Water Service Agreement 
Rate Study 
Replenishment Assessment Charge 
Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension 
Whitewater Hydro SCE contract extension 
SWP/DWA tax rates 
ACBCI PRA Whitewater Mutual Water Company 
State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 
Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA 
MSWD Lawsuit 
Snow Creek Security 
 

 
 
 
 
 





























7-A 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JULY 19, 2016 

 
 
RE: REPORT ON PUBLIC HEALTH GOALS – PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Per the California Health and Safety Code - Section 116470(b), staff has 
prepared DWA’s 2015 Public Health Goal Report (due July 2016). The Report 
compares the Agency’s system water quality with Public Health Goals (PHGs) 
and Maximum Contaminant Level Goals (MCLGs), and is prepared every 
three years. 
 
PHG levels have been established by the California Environmental Protection 
Agency’s Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA); the 
MCLGs have been established by the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency (USEPA), and are the federal equivalent to PHGs.  PHGs and MCLGs 
are not enforceable standards and no action is required to meet them.  
 
The Agency’s water system complies with all of the health-based drinking 
water standards and maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) required by the 
Division of Drinking Water and the USEPA. Throughout the three-year 
reporting period (2013-2015), there were only five constituents found at levels 
that exceeded the PHG or MCGL. 

Constituent PHG/MCGL MCL DWA max 
level 

Removal Capital Costs / 
Yearly O&M 

(Per Site) 
Coliform 
bacteria 

zero 5% 2.2% Chlorination $97K / $20k  

Chromium-6 0.02 ppb 10 ppb 3.8 ppb Reverse 
Osmosis 

$2M / $32k 

Radium-228 0.019 pCi/L 5 pCi/L 
(radium 

combined) 

0.49 pCi/L Reverse 
Osmosis 

$2M / $32k 

PCE 0.06 ppb 5 ppb 0.5 ppb  RWQCB 
managed 

Uranium 0.43 pCi/L 20 pCi/L 20 pCi/L Reverse 
Osmosis 

$2M / $32K 

 



 
Report recommendations: DWA meets all federal and state drinking water 
standards set to protect public health. The further reduction of the constituents 
is not justified. The effectiveness of additional techniques and the projected 
health benefits are not clear or quantifiable. As DWA is a not-for-profit public 
agency, all of its treatment costs are borne by its customers. No action is 
proposed at this time. 
 
In accordance with requirements of Health and Safety Code (California Safe 
Drinking Water Act of 1996, SB 1307), a public hearing must be held.  
 
The purpose of this public hearing is to allow the Board to accept and respond 
to public comments on the Report.  
 
The Public Hearing notice was provided via: 

• Home page of DWA website 
• Bulletin board in DWA lobby  
• Cathedral City City Hall, Palm Springs City Hall, and Desert Hot Springs 

City Hall bulletin boards 
• Notice in The Public Record on July 5 and 12  
 

As of 5:00 p.m., July 14, no written or verbal comments were received from the 
public.  
 
Other than conducting the hearing, no action is required with respect to the 
Report. Staff will notify the Division of Drinking Water to make them aware that 
the hearing took place. 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 8 
 

DESERT WATER AGENCY REPORT ON SYSTEM WATER QUALITY 
RELATIVE TO PUBLIC HEALTH GOALS 

January 2013 to December 2015 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Provisions of the California Health & Safety Code (see Reference #1) specify that public 
water systems with greater than 10,000 service connections must prepare a special 
report by July 1, 2016 if their water quality measurements have exceeded any Public 
Health Goals (PHGs).  PHGs are non-enforceable goals established by the Cal-EPA’s 
Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA).   The law also requires 
that where OEHHA has not adopted a PHG for a constituent, the water suppliers are to 
use the MCLGs (Maximum Contaminant Level Goal) adopted by the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (USEPA).  Only constituents which have a California primary drinking 
water standard and for which either a PHG or MCLG has been set are to be addressed.  
(Reference 2 is a list of all regulated constituents with the MCLs and PHGs.) 
 
The purpose of this Report is to provide consumer access to information regarding the 
levels of various constituents, even if they are below enforceable mandatory maximum 
contaminant levels (MCLs), and an estimate of cost to either reduce the constituent 
level or eliminate any trace of it from drinking water, regardless of how minimal the risk 
might be. 
 
If a constituent was detected in the Agency’s water supply between 2013 to 2015 at a 
level exceeding an applicable PHG or MCLG, this Report provides the information 
required by the law.  Included is the numerical public health risk (if applicable) 
associated with the MCL and the PHG or MCLG, the category or type of risk to health 
that could be associated with each constituent, the best treatment technology available 
that could be used to eliminate or reduce the constituent level, and an estimate of the 
cost to install that treatment if it is appropriate and feasible. 
 

WHAT ARE PHGs/MCLs/MCLGs? 
 
Public health goals (PHGs) are based solely on public health risk assessments and are 
generally lower than the enforceable maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) of the 
primary drinking water standards.   MCLs, which are established at very conservative 
levels, provide protection to consumers against all but very low to negligible risk and 
are the regulatory definition of what is considered “safe.” 
 
PHGs for non-carcinogenic chemicals in drinking water are set at a concentration “at 
which no known or anticipated adverse health effects will occur, with an adequate 
margin of safety.”  For carcinogens, PHGs are set at a concentration that “does not 
pose a significant risk of cancer.”  This is usually a one-in-a-million excess cancer risk 



Page 2 of 8 
 

(1x10-6) for a lifetime of exposure.  MCLGs, like PHGs, are strictly health-based and 
include a margin of safety.  One difference, however, is that the MCLGs for carcinogens 
are set at zero because the USEPA assumes there is no absolutely safe level of 
exposure to them. 
 
None of the practical risk-management factors that are considered in establishing MCLs 
are considered in establishing PHGs/MCLGs.  MCLs include analytical detection 
capability, availability of treatment technology, benefits and costs. 
 
PHGs/MCLGs are not enforceable and are not required to be met by any public water 
system. In addition to cost and technological feasibility, PHGs/MCLGs may provide a 
basis for revising MCLs. 
 

HEALTH RISK CATEGORIES 
 
Health Risk Assessments are categorized for various PHG/MCLGs.  Health risks are 
based on long-term exposure to low levels of contaminants as would occur with 
drinking water, rather than high doses from a single or short-term exposure.  These are 
the first or most sensitive adverse effects that occur when chemical exposure reaches a 
sufficient level and duration to produce toxicity.  Basing health goals to protect against 
these risks also protects against risks that would occur from short-term exposure.  
 
Numerical Public Health Risks have been assigned to carcinogenic health risk 
categories, whereas the cancer risk is stated in terms of excess cancer cases per million 
(or fewer) population.   No numerical Public Health Risk has been calculated for 
chemicals considered non-carcinogenic. 
 
Various Health Risk categories and specific health outcome are as follows: 
 
Acute toxicity – adverse health effects that develop after a short-term exposure to a 
chemical.  Exposure may last only minutes or occur over a few days. 
 
Carcinogenic  – capable of producing cancer. 
 
Chronic Toxicity – adverse effects that usually develop gradually from low levels of 
chemical exposure where exposure may occur from months to years. 
 
Developmental toxicity – adverse effects on the developing organism that may result 
from exposure prior to conception (either parent), during prenatal development, or 
postnatally to the time of sexual maturation.  Adverse developmental effects may be 
detected at any point in the life span of the organism.  The majority manifestations 
include: (1) death of the developing organism, (2) structural abnormality (birth 
defects), (3) altered growth, and (4) functional deficiency. 
 



Page 3 of 8 
 

Neurotoxic – capable of destroying or adversely affecting the nervous system, or 
interfering with nerve signal transmission.  Effects may be reversible (for example, 
effects on chemicals that carry nerve signals across gaps between nerve cells) or 
irreversible (destruction of nerve cells). 
 
Reproductive effects – the occurrence of adverse effects on the reproductive system of 
females or males that may result from exposure to environmental agents.  The toxicity 
may cause changes to the female or male reproductive organs, the regulating endocrine 
system, or pregnancy outcomes.  Examples of such toxicity may include adverse effects 
on onset of puberty, egg production and transport, menstrual cycle normality, sexual 
behavior such as sexual urge, and lowered fertility, sperm production, length of 
pregnancy, and milk production. 
 

WATER QUALITY DATA CONSIDERED 
 
All water quality data collected within our system between January 2013 through 
December 2015, has been considered for the purpose of determining compliance with 
the primary drinking water standards.  Data from 2015 is summarized in our 2015 
Annual Water Quality Report which has already been distributed to our customers 
(Reference #3). 
 

BEST AVAILABLE TREATMENT TECHNOLOGY & COST ESTIMATES 
 
Both the USEPA and State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopt what are 
known as BATs or Best Available Technologies, which are the best known methods of 
reducing contaminant levels to the MCL. Costs of these BATs are difficult to predict.  
Estimating the costs to reduce a constituent to zero is difficult, if not impossible.  Some 
approved analytical methods may not be able to verify that levels have indeed been 
reduced beyond the method detection limit.  However, since many PHGs and all MCLGs 
are set much lower than the MCL, it is not always possible nor feasible to determine 
what treatment is needed to further reduce a constituent downward to or near the PHG 
or MCLG.  In some cases, installing treatment to try and further reduce very low levels 
of one constituent may have adverse effects on other aspects of water quality. 
 
 

CONSTITUENTS DETECTED THAT EXCEED A PHG OR MCLG 
 

The following constituents were detected in one or more of our drinking water sources 
at levels above the PHG, or if no PHG, above the MCLG. 
 
Coliform Bacteria 
 
During the calendar year 2015, the Agency collected an average of 98 samples each 
month for Coliform analysis.  Occasionally, a sample was found to be positive for 



Page 4 of 8 
 

coliform bacteria, but follow-up action and sample re-checks were negative.  The 
maximum coliform bacteria count within the 3 year reporting period was 2.20%, 
detected in May 2015.    
 
The MCL for coliform is 5% positive samples of all samples per month, and the MCLG is 
zero.  The reason for the coliform drinking water standard is to minimize the possibility 
of the water containing pathogens, which are organisms that cause waterborne disease.  
Because coliform is only a surrogate indicator of the potential presence of pathogens, it 
is not possible to state a specific numerical health risk.  While USEPA normally sets 
MCLGs “at a level where no known or anticipated adverse effects on persons would 
occur,” they indicate that they cannot do so with coliforms. 
 
Coliform bacteria are an indicator organism that are ubiquitous in nature and are not 
generally considered harmful.  They are used because of the ease in monitoring and 
analysis.  If a positive sample is found, it indicates a potential problem that needs to be 
investigated and follow up sampling is required.  It is not at all unusual for a system to 
have an occasional positive sample.  It is difficult, if not impossible, to assure that a 
system will never get a positive sample. 
 
Desert Water Agency currently utilizes chlorine for disinfection.  Chlorine residuals are 
continually maintained within those portions of the distribution system served by 
surface water, while chlorine residuals for the remaining portions of the distribution 
system are maintained on an as required basis only. 
 
Chlorine disinfection is only one method that this Agency utilizes to insure the water 
served is microbiologically safe.  Other equally important measures that this Agency has 
implemented include an effective cross-connection control program, preventative 
maintenance, main flushing, proper placement and construction of wells, facility 
upgrades, effective monitoring and surveillance programs and maintaining positive 
pressures within the distribution system. 
 
With the exception of maintaining continual chlorine residuals throughout the entire 
distribution system, the Agency has taken the steps prescribed by State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) as the best available technology for coliform 
bacteria. 
 
BATs have been adopted by the USEPA and SWRCB (formerly the California Dept. of 
Public Health) and are described in Section 64447, Title 22, California Code of 
Regulations (Reference #4), as the best-known methods of reducing coliform levels to 
the MCL.  Although the BAT for coliform PHG/MCLG has been defined as a treatment 
techniques, there is no indication that the PHG/MCLG can ever be achieved.  The BAT 
for the reduction of coliform could be implementation of disinfection residuals 
throughout the distribution system.  To provide for this capability, additional 
groundwater disinfection facilities would need to be installed. 



Page 5 of 8 
 

 
The initial construction cost for these facilities is estimated at $3,381,620.00 with 
additional overhead and maintenance costs of $724,064.00 per year.  This would result 
in an approximate increased cost per service connection/customer of $180.16. 
 
 
Chromium VI 
 
Chromium is a naturally occurring metallic element.  It is tasteless and odorless and is 
most often found in the environment as a result of erosion of rocks, plants, soil, and 
volcanic dust.  The two most common forms of naturally occurring chromium are: 
 
 Trivalent chromium (chromium-3) 
 Hexavalent chromium (chromium-6) 
 
Chromium-3 is essentially a dietary element found in many fruits and vegetables, meat, 
grain and yeast.  Dietary supplements often contain chromium 3. 
 
Chromium-6 is used to process leather, for chrome plating, manufacturing stainless 
steel, used as a wood preservative and in dyes and pigments.  Other than occurring 
naturally, it can find its way into groundwater through industrial waste leaks, specifically 
leaks in storage facilities or disposal sites.   
 
The primary drinking water standard (MCL) for chromium-6, as set by the SWRCB is 10 
ug/L (micrograms per liter).  On July 1, 2014, California added chromium-6 to the list of 
regulated contaminants and set the PHG at 0.02 ug/L.  Per Title 22 regulations, Desert 
Water Agency collected initial samples for compliance regulations in 2013.  In 2014 the 
EPA required DWA to monitor chromium-6 in selected wells for a one-year period.  All 
wells tested during 2013 and 2014 show between 0.06 – 3.8 ug/L chromium-6, well 
below MCL standards. 
 
Chromium-6 is an occupational carcinogen most often inhaled, therefore associated 
with lung cancer, and nasal and sinus cancer.  It’s also been shown to be a 
reproductive cancer in both men and women.  The cancer risk at the PHG has been 
established as 1 X 10-6, which means there could be one excess cancer case per million 
people.  Most cancer studies have been associated with inhalation of chromium-6, but 
there is strong data to suggest ingestion can also have severe side effects.  
 
The (BAT) for removing hexavalent chromium as it applies to Desert Water Agency 
would be reverse osmosis and will be discussed in greater detail in the Contaminant 
Removal section of this report. 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 8 
 

Radium-228 
 
Radium is a naturally occurring radioactive element found in most rocks and soil.  
Groundwater can contain radium leached from the bedrock surrounding the aquifers 
used for drinking water.  There are several forms or products of decay called isotopes.  
Radium-228 is an isotope of radium and emits beta particle activity.  It has a decay 
rate, or half-life of just less than 6 years. 
 
Radium in drinking water can present a cancer risk over a long period of consumption.  
When ingested, radium behaves similarly to calcium and can collect in the bones and 
teeth.  Long term exposure can increase the risk of bone cancer and leukemia.  
Exposure through bathing is less of a concern because the skin can minimize the 
penetration of beta radiation. 
 
The primary drinking water standard (MCL) for combined radium-226 + radium-228 is 5 
pCi/L.  The PHG for radium-228 is 0.019 pCi/L.  Several of DWAs wells and three 
surface water sites were tested for radium-228 in 2013.  Data ranged between non 
detect to the high of 0.49 pCi/L.  All the data fell below the detection limit for reporting  
of 1 pCi/L, so was not transmitted to the state for their database.   The numerical 
cancer risk ranking for radium-228 is 1 X 10-6, which means there could be one excess 
cancer case per million people. 
 
The BAT for removing radium-228, as it applies to Desert Water Agency, would be 
reverse osmosis and will be discussed in greater detail in the Contaminant Removal 
section of this report. 
  
 
Tetrachloroethylene (PCE) 
 
Tetrachloroethylene is a manufactured substance that is not found in nature.  At room 
temperature, it is a nonflammable liquid that easily evaporates into the air.  It has a 
distinctive sharp-sweet odor that most people can detect at 1 part PCE per million parts 
of air.  It’s primary use is for dry cleaning.  It is also used as a metal degreaser in the 
automotive industry and may be found in spot removers and paint strippers.  Though a 
chemically stable solvent, it is volatile and can enter the body through inhalation and 
skin contact.  It has been detected in drinking water supplies from contaminated 
groundwater.  The OEHHA has established the PHG for PCE at 0.06 ug/L.  The MCL for 
drinking water is 5 ug/L. 
 
Effects of exposure to PCE include neurological effects like dizziness, headache, 
sleepiness, unconsciousness, mood or behavioral changes and impaired motor skills.  
Exposure can cause kidney and liver dysfunction and irritation to the eyes and upper 
respiratory tract.  It is a carcinogen associated with liver, kidney and bladder cancer.  
The cancer risk is 1 x 10-6 which means there could be one excess cancer case per 



Page 7 of 8 
 

million people.  Because of the cancer and toxicity risks, PCE was banned in 2007 for all 
new dry cleaning machines.  Older PCE using machines were to be shut down as of 
2010 and use of PCE will be completely discontinued in California by 2023.  As a result 
of this action, PCE detection in the air has been reduced. 
 
Desert Water Agency pumps water directly from the unconfined Whitewater River 
Subbasin Aquifer.  This aquifer generally flows underground in a south easterly 
direction.  In 1987, levels of PCE that exceeded the MCL were detected at Well 6.  The 
source of the contamination was a drycleaner approximately 800 feet away.  The well 
has since been taken out of service, pending abatement that began in 1996.   
 
In 2013, PCE was detected at Well 32, which is east and slightly south of Well 6.  The 
amount of PCE that was detected was 0.5 ug/L which is ten times less than the MCL, 
but right at the detection limit for reporting.  Subsequent quarterly monitoring for one 
year did not detect the presence of PCE and the well continues to be in use.   
 
The California Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) is the lead agency 
involved with the remediation at Well 6.  The financial burden for the cleanup using 
BAT, including collecting soil samples and an abatement plan, is the responsibility of the 
drycleaner.  Should future sampling at Well 32 show an excess of PCE, and if 
abatement is necessary, the expense will be covered by the same BAT overseen by the 
RWQCB. 
 
 
Uranium 
 
Uranium is a silvery white metallic radioactive element that is present, to some degree, 
in almost everything in our environment.  It occurs naturally in granites and other 
mineral deposits and it generally finds its way into water by leaching from these natural 
deposits.  As established by OEHHA, the PHG for uranium is 0.43 pCi/L (pico Curies per 
liter of water).  The MCL or drinking water standard for uranium is 20 pCi/L.  Laboratory 
analysis on our groundwater and surface water sources have indicated uranium levels 
ranging from 2.5 pCi/L to 20 pCi/L.  Uranium has a health risk category of Carcinogen 
and it usually effects the kidneys.  Health risk categories are based on experimental 
animal testing data evaluated by the USEPA.  Cancer risk is stated numerically as 1 X 
10-6, which means there could be one excess cancer case per million people. 
 
Between 2013 and the end of 2015, 27 well sites and 1 surface water site were 
monitored for Uranium.  Two other surface water sites did not require Uranium testing.  
All 28 sites sampled exceeded the PHG for uranium yet all levels of uranium detected 
were below or at the MCL at all times.  Well 16 reported a result of 20 pCi/L in 
December 2014  requiring quarterly monitoring for 12 months.  The quarterly sampling 
was completed in December 2015 with an average Uranium of 17 pCi/L, meeting 
drinking water standards.   



Page 8 of 8 
 

Contaminant Removal 
 
There are  many steps that can be taken to achieve compliance with state and federal 
regulations.  Desert Water Agency continues to remain in compliance and deliver safe 
drinking water to our customers.  To protect the water system and continue to deliver 
safe drinking water, it may be necessary to reduce or remove the contaminant. 
 
Desert Water Agency has explored the best available technology (BAT) to remove 
hexavalent chromium, radium-228 and uranium.  Each of these contaminants can be 
removed or reduced by using the same technology; reverse osmosis (RO).  RO is an 
accepted method for removal of many contaminants and once installed at a well site, it 
has the ability to remove several components, including those that pose no risk at all. 
 
To remove uranium, radium-228 and chromium-6 from one site, the estimated initial 
construction cost is approximately $2,016,000, with an estimated additional overhead 
and maintenance cost of $31,508.  Uranium is the most frequent occurring contaminant 
and if the Agency had to remove uranium throughout the system, the costs would be 
estimated at $70,650,000 for initial construction and $1,071,510 for additional overhead 
and maintenance costs. If surface water samples have high turbidity, they must first be 
filtered for reverse osmosis to be effective and the above figures do not reflect this 
additional expense.  To meet these expenses, the Agency would have to increase the 
cost per service connection/customer more than $3,230. 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             
 

RECOMMENDATION FOR FURTHER ACTION 
 
The Desert Water Agency meets all Federal and State Drinking Water Standards set to 
protect public health. 
 
To further reduce the levels of constituents identified in this Report that are already 
significantly below the health-based Maximum Contaminant Levels, additional costly 
treatment processes would be required.   As the effectiveness of additional treatment 
processes is uncertain, and the health protection benefits of any reduction are not clear, 
and may not be quantifiable, additional treatment processes are not justified.  
Therefore, no action is proposed. 
 
References Attached: 
#1 Excerpt from California Health & Safety Code:  Section 116470(b) 
#2 Table of Regulated Contaminants with MCL, PHG, or MCLGs, updated September 

23, 2015 
#3 DWA 2015 Consumer Confidence Report 
#4  Excerpt from Health risk Information for Public Health goal Exceedance Reports; 

February 2016 



Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #1



Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #1

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text



Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #2



Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #2



Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #2



Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #2



W A T E R 
Q U A L I T Y 
R E P O R T
Delivered June 2016

2015

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #3



Facing New Challenges Together
Over the past year, my first serving you as General Manager, we’ve seen 
some incredible changes, both in our community and the water industry. The 
much-anticipated El Niño generated excitement and higher water levels in 
some Northern California reservoirs, but did not end our historic drought. 
The costs to provide water throughout the state are increasing dramatically, 
as strict new environmental requirements and water quality standards 
create the need for new infrastructure and treatment. The importance of 
water to our lifestyle and economy has never been clearer. 

Tackling these challenges together with you, our customers, is more 
important than ever. You have answered the call, achieving unprecedented 
levels of conservation, and making meaningful changes to the way you use 
precious water resources. Driving around Palm Springs and Cathedral City, 
I’ve noticed more and more desert landscaping. I am proud that this is due 
in part to our turf buy back grant program. We hope that this program and 
others like it have a snowball effect. Offering information and rebates to 
help save water is one important way we will continue to serve customers.

While conservation is always a focus, it is only part of what we do here at 
Desert Water. Our most important job is to serve you high-quality water 
that you can depend on every time you turn on the tap. Our team is on call 
around the clock, seven days a week to ensure the safety and reliability of 
your supply. 

We are tasked with maintaining a system that has little room for error. 
While our agency and our customers have made investments in the right 
infrastructure for our region, many of our pipelines are older than the average 

Palm Springs resident. Fixing and replacing older pipelines and operating in 
a highly regulated state, all at a time when we are selling less water, creates 
financial challenges, but it is essential to the long-term viability of Desert 
Water. While we operate and maintain this system, it belongs to you, our 
customer. Continuing to invest in it will help ensure that we leave the next 
generation with the same opportunity to thrive. 

Serving as stewards of your local supply is also essential to protecting this 
opportunity. Desert Water Agency has been blessed to overlie an aquifer filled 
with healthy water that requires only a touch of chlorine before delivery. Our 
aquifer has not seen declines in the face of the severe drought, thanks to 
groundwater replenishment efforts that protect the health of our groundwater 
basin and help secure your future supply. Imported water plays a key role in 
our system now, and will for years to come.

As we head into the future, we will work to balance the needs of our community 
and protect our most precious resource. We encourage you to engage with 
us at our bimonthly public meetings, on social media, by phone or even at 
our offices. 

Hearing what matters to our community helps us serve you better. It is our 
privilege to provide you this service.

Mark S. Krause
General Manager and Chief Engineer

June 2016



Desert Water Agency is committed to 
serving healthy, safe drinking water and to 
keeping you informed about the quality of the 
water that is delivered to your tap. Our dedicated 
staff samples water daily to ensure that it meets 
all standards. As drought conditions in California 
continue to affect water supply, it is important for 
us to support our customers and work together 
to protect this precious local resource. 

By explaining the sources of our water 
and defining the constituents in the water, this 
report is our way of providing clear, transparent 
information to our customers. To make going 
through our report easier for customers, we’ve 
included informational videos; we hope that you 
enjoy them. The board and staff of DWA take 
their responsibility to provide high-quality water 
very seriously and we’re proud to report that our 
water meets and beats the strictest standards 
in the nation. If you have any questions when 
reviewing this report, please contact Beth 
Amheiser, laboratory director, at (760) 323-4971 
ext. 169.

Visit dwa.org/2015wqr to see a video interview.

Enough to reach 
the TOP of Mount 
San Jacinto
13 Times

574 
Leaks detected 
and repaired

1,248
Meters replaced

8,811
Linear feet of 
pipeline replaced

Miles of sewer line 
inspected

Enough to fill 

67,636 

average-sized swimming pools

8,884,952,692
G A L L O N S 
of water delivered

1,298,608,784
G A L L O N S 
of recycled
water delivered

2,767
Water quality 
tests performed

1,682,410
RENEWABLE KILOWATT
hours produced

Enough to power about 

404 homes for a year

Enough to fill  

462,758 
average-sized swimming pools

Desert Water Agency Year at a Glance Your Water Quality

27.7



Our Water Supply

Established in 1961, Desert Water Agency 
(DWA) is a public nonprofit agency and 
State Water Contractor serving residents 
and visitors in a 325-square-mile area that 
includes parts of Cathedral City, Palm Springs, 
and Desert Hot Springs, as well as some 
unincorporated areas of Riverside County. The 
Agency’s responsibility is to provide a safe, 
reliable water supply to its service area while 
protecting its interests in the State Water 
Project. DWA’s ratepayers are represented by 
a five-member elected board, which makes 
policy decisions on their behalf.

Desert Water Agency Water Sources

Unless otherwise noted, data presented in this 
report was obtained between January 1, 2015, 
and December 31, 2015. Water quality monitoring 
was performed in accordance with regulations 
established by the State Water Resources Control 
Board Division of Drinking Water and the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency. 

In some cases, the State Water Resources Control 
Board allows DWA to test for certain contaminants 
less than once a year, because the Agency’s 
system is not susceptible to these contaminants, 
or because the levels recorded are expected to vary 
little from year to year.

Water Quality Monitoring

Water is a precious and limited 
resource; only about .007 
percent of the water found on 
Earth is readily accessible to 
treat for drinking.

Desert Water Agency’s groundwater 
comes from the Whitewater River 
Sub basin of the Coachella Valley 
Groundwater Basin, a natural reservoir 
storing water beneath the valley floor. 
Mountain streams also bring water by 
way of Chino Creek, Falls Creek and 
Snow Creek. Surface water sources 
are operated under criteria for avoiding 
filtration. 

Natural groundwater replenishment 
is supplemented with Colorado River 
water, which is imported through 
the Colorado River Aqueduct and 
percolated into the groundwater basin 
via recharge ponds near Windy Point 
and in Mission Creek.



Water Source Information
The sources of drinking water (both tap water and bottled water) include 
rivers, lakes, streams, ponds, reservoirs, springs, and wells. As water 
travels over the surface of the land or through the ground, it dissolves 
naturally occurring minerals and, in some cases, radioactive material, 
and can pick up substances resulting from the presence of animals or 
from human activity.

A Source Water Assessment Plan (SWAP), last updated 
in October 2007, is available at our office. This plan is 
an assessment of the delineated area around our listed 
sources through which contaminants, if present, could 
migrate and reach our source water. It also includes an 
inventory of potential sources of contamination within the 
delineated area and a determination of the water supply’s 
susceptibility to contamination by the identified potential 
sources.

These sources are considered vulnerable to activities 
normally associated with residential, commercial and 
industrial development. However, all water provided by 
Desert Water Agency meets all U.S. EPA and SWRCB 
guidelines. To review the SWAP, please contact our office 
during regular business hours.

Source Water Assessment

Questions? For more information about this report, or for any questions relating to your drinking water, 
please call Beth Amheiser, laboratory director, at (760) 323-4971 ext. 169.



Chromium-6: What you need to know
Desert Water Agency is continually monitoring our water 
system, performing thousands of tests per year to make sure 
the drinking water we deliver to customers meets or exceeds 
all public health standards.

One of the things we test for is chromium-6, also known as 
hexavalent chromium, a mineral that occurs naturally in the 
Coachella Valley’s groundwater. In 2014, California became 
the first and only state in the nation to set a drinking water 
standard for chromium-6.

DWA is fortunate because its water supplies are below the 
state standard of 10 parts per billion. Any chromium-6 that 
is present in untreated water is diluted when Colorado River 
imports are blended with groundwater in our portion of the 
Coachella Valley Groundwater Basin. Because the success of 
our groundwater recharge program means our water already 
complies with this new state regulation, DWA is one of the 
only water providers in the region that will not have to perform 
additional treatment or build costly new facilities.

The state continues to monitor possible long-term health risks of 
chromium-6. However, there is no immediate health threat, even in areas 
with levels of the mineral above the state’s maximum contaminant level. 
DWA will continue to prioritize water quality, to ensure that families and 
businesses in the communities we serve have access to a safe and reliable 
water supply.

Desert Water Agency tests 
its water for constituents in 
concentrations as small as 
one part per billion,  meaning 
one part of a substance in one 
billion molecules of water. 

That’s equivalent to:

• One drop of water in an 
Olympic swimming pool

• One penny in $10 million

• One second in 32 years

• One foot on a trip to the 
moon!

Did you know?
Since the 1980s, DWA has committed to 
sustainability. Today, those practices include:

• Supplying recycled water to all the public golf 
courses we serve, saving millions of gallons of 
potable water each year.

• Powering 100% of daytime operations at the 
DWA headquarters and recycled water plant 
with solar power.

• Generating almost two million  kilowatts of 
power through hydroelectric and solar sources 
to offset energy costs.

These commitments are beneficial to the ratepayer 
as well as the environment, protecting resources 
while helping to keep rates as low as possible.



Investing to Prevent Leaks
Desert Water has some pipelines that have been in place since the 
Great Depression, and the overwhelming majority of pipelines were 
installed before the Berlin Wall came down. Times have changed – 
and our system needs to as well. Many of the older pipelines are 
smaller in diameter than is ideal, and they are made of materials that 
aren’t as durable as what is installed today. 

Our team has determined that the older, unlined steel pipes are 
responsible for more than 90 percent of leaks in our system. This is 
a staggering figure, particularly given that unlined steel pipes make 
up only 20 percent of our system. In 2015 alone, about 10.9 million 
gallons were lost to system leaks. Our Board of Directors and staff 
have committed to a proactive replacement program that will target 
the unlined steel pipelines, reducing leak frequency, water loss, and  
the staffing costs that result from emergency repairs. 

Emergency replacements can cost five times more than planned 
work. Replacing more than a mile of pipeline every year is going to 
cost about $4 million annually, but these pipelines will need to be 
replaced regardless of planning. By taking this proactive approach to 
system maintenance, DWA will save customers money over the long 
term. 

As a not-for-profit government agency, DWA can only charge what it 
costs to provide service. A rate study is now underway to determine 
current costs and evaluate whether rate changes are necessary. The 
pipeline replacement program is just one factor that is being weighed 
as the Board of Directors evaluates potential water rate changes. You 
will receive a notification by mail and have an opportunity to provide 
input before any changes are made to the rates.



Common Questions on Water Quality

When your water tastes or smells funny, the problem may or may 
not be in the water. Odors might actually be coming from your sink  
drain, where bacteria grow on hair, soap, food, and other things that 
get trapped. Odorous gases get stirred up when water pours into the 
drain. Odor can also come from bacteria growing on devices such as 
water heaters. 

Occasionally, tiny air bubbles in tap water cause a cloudy appearance. 
Air dissolves into water when pressurized, which occurs in the 
groundwater basin and in the water pipes that deliver water to 
your tap. These bubbles dissipate after a few moments in a glass.

No. Desert Water Agency tap water meets all drinking water standards 
and does not need to be conditioned or filtered. DWA does not prohibit 
the use of water softeners, but Agency ordinance does prohibit the 
discharge of excess salt down the drain. Discharged salt can harm 
the groundwater and may require additional treatment, which would 
increase the future costs of providing sewer and water services.

A small amount of chlorine is added to meet drinking water regulations. 
It is a disinfectant that is used to provide continuous protection against 
possible microbial contamination. Regulations limit the amount of 
chlorine added to tap water so that the water is safe to drink. A slight 
smell or taste of chlorine is normal.

This smell can occur under some conditions when sulfate is present 
in the water supply. Improperly maintained water heaters or lack 
of water circulation within a residence during warmer months are 
circumstances that may contribute to this odor.

An easy way to reduce the chlorine smell is to let water sit in a glass 

for a few minutes. Then, put the water in a covered container and chill in the 

refrigerator. Cold water tastes and smells better than water at room temperature.

If the odor is only present in hot water, then the odor may be a result of 

sulfur-reducing bacteria growing in the water heater tank.

Why does tap water sometimes smell funny?

Why does my water look cloudy?

Do I need a softener?

Why does tap water have a faint chlorine smell?

Why does my water have a rotten egg or sulfur smell?

TIP

FACT

Visit dwa.org/2015wqr to see a video interview.



Water only before 7 a.m. 
and after 7 p.m. on Monday, 
Wednesday and Friday. 
Saturday and Sunday 
allowed through 10/31/16.

Don’t water or wash the 
sidewalk, driveway, or other 
hardscapes.

Don’t water during or 48 
hours after rain.

Restaurants can only serve 
water upon request.

Hotels must give guests the 
option to skip daily laundry.

For the most current information, please 
visit www.dwa.org/restrictions 

In 2015: A Big Year For Conservation at DWA

TIPS FOR BIG SAVINGS

Together We Save
Despite forecasts for a wet winter, California is still facing drought 
conditions. As a whole, the state fell just short of Governor 
Brown’s 25-percent conservation target. Desert Water Agency 
customers saved 26.5 precent compared to 2013. Due to climate 
conditions and the continued need to save, the State Water 
Board extended the restrictions through January 2017. Desert 
Water Agency expects to have its new conservation standard by 
the end of June 2016. 

Desert Water Agency plans to work with customers to achieve 
the state's conservation mandate. Our team is already recycling 
every drop of wastewater we receive, replenishing the aquifer with 
available imports, and offering rebates to support our customers. 

For additional conservation tips and programs, visit www.dwa.org

THE FOLLOWING MANDATORY RESTRICTIONS ARE 
STILL IN EFFECT AS OF JUNE 7, 2016. 

560 

smart 
controllers 
installed

21
water
audits

467 
inefficient 
toilets
replaced

284 

turf removal projects 
- 30% average water 
use reduction

1,231 

water
waste 
reports

 Install a SMART IRRIGATION 
CONTROLLER to cut water use 
by 15%.

 WATER AT NIGHT and turn off 
sprinklers when it rains.

 CHECK FOR LEAKS; fixing them 
can save water and money.

 Go online to view our MANDATORY 
RESTRICTIONS.



Regulatory Information

• Microbial contaminants, such as viruses and bacteria, that may 
come from sewage treatment plants, septic systems, agricultural 
livestock operations, and wildlife.

• Inorganic contaminants, such as salts and metals, that can 
be naturally occurring or result from urban stormwater runoff, 
industrial or domestic wastewater discharges, oil and gas 
production, mining, or farming.

• Pesticides and herbicides, which may come from a variety of 
sources such as agriculture, urban stormwater runoff, and 
residential uses.

• Organic chemical contaminants, including synthetic and volatile 
organic chemicals, that are by-products of industrial processes 
and petroleum production, and can also come from gas 
stations, urban stormwater runoff, agricultural application, and 
septic systems.

• Radioactive contaminants, which can be naturally occurring or be 
the result of oil and gas production and mining activities.

Contaminants that may be present in 
source water include:

In order to ensure that tap water is safe to drink, the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) prescribe regulations that 
limit the amount of certain contaminants in water provided by 
public water systems. USEPA regulations also establish limits 
for contaminants in bottled water that provide protection for 
public health.

Drinking water, including bottled water, may reasonably 
be expected to contain at least small amounts of some 
contaminants. The presence of contaminants does not 
necessarily indicate that water poses a health risk. More 
information about contaminants and potential health effects 
is available through the USEPA’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline 
(1-800-426-4791).



Health Information
Some people may be more vulnerable to 
contaminants in drinking water than the 
general population. Immuno compromised 
persons such as persons with cancer 
undergoing chemotherapy, persons who have 
undergone organ transplants, people with 
HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, 
some elderly, and infants can be particularly 
at risk from infections. These people should 
seek advice about drinking water from their 
health care providers.

USEPA/Centers for Disease Control (CDC) 
guidelines on appropriate means to lessen 
the risk of infection by Cryptosporidium and 
other microbial contaminants are available 
from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline 
(1-800-426-4791).

If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious health problems, especially for 
pregnant women and young children. Lead in drinking water is primarily from materials 
and components associated with service lines and home plumbing. Desert Water Agency 
is responsible for providing high-quality drinking water but cannot control the variety of 
materials used in your property's plumbing. When your water has been sitting for several 
hours, you can minimize the potential for lead exposure by flushing your tap for 30 seconds 
to 2 minutes before using water for drinking or cooking. If you are concerned about lead in 
your water, you may wish to have your water tested.  Information on lead in drinking water, 
testing methods, and steps you can take to minimize exposure is available from the Safe 
Drinking Water Hotline or at http://www.epa.gov/safewater/lead.



During the past year we have taken more than 2,000 water samples in order to determine the presence of any radioactive, biological, inorganic, volatile organic, or 
synthetic organic contaminants. The tables below show only those contaminants that were detected in the water. The State allows us to monitor for certain 
substances less often than once per year because the concentrations of these substances do not change frequently. Some of our data, although representative, are 
more than one year old. In these cases, the most recent sample data are included, along with the year in which the sample was taken.

Sampling Results
R

eg
ul

at
ed

 S
ub

st
an

ce
s

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
MCL

[MRDL]

PHG
(MCLG)

[MRDLG]

Groundwater Source Surface Water Source Distribution System Violation
Likely source of 
contaminationYear 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Yes No

Barium mg/L 1 2 2013 0.08
ND - 
0.16

NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural desposits

Chlorine mg/L
[4.0 as 

Cl
2
]

[4 as Cl
2
] NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 0.411 ND-1.98 

Drinking water disinfectant 
added for treatment

Fluoride mg/L 2.0 1
2013-
2015

0.44
0.13-
0.83

2015 ND ND NA NA NA 

Erosion of natural desposits; 
water additive that promotes 
strong teeth; discharge from 

fertilizer and aluminum 
factories

Gross Alpha Particle 
Activity

pCi/L 15 (0)
2010-
2015

10 3.0-17 2013 ND ND NA NA NA  Erosion of natural desposits

Haloacetic Acids 
[HAA5]

µg/L 60 NONE NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 18.81 ND-20.9 
By-product of drinking 

water disinfection

Hexavalent Chromium µg/L 10 0.02 2014 1.06
0.062-

3.8
NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Discharge from 
electroplating factories, 
leather tanneries, wood 
preservation, chemical 
synthesis, refractory 

production, and textile 
manufacturing facilities; 

erosion of natural deposits.

Iron µg/L 300 NONE 2013 40 ND-540 2015 45 ND-180 NA NA NA 
Leaching from natural 

deposits; industrial waste

Nitrate mg/L 45 45 2015 5.0 ND-17 2015 ND ND NA NA NA 

Runoff and leaching from 
fertilizer use; leaching from 

septic tanks and sewage; 
erosion of natural deposits

Radium - 228 pCi/L 53 0.019
2009- 
2013

.03 ND-1.55 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits.

Total Coliform Bacteria
(Total Coliform Rule)

%

more than 
5% of 

monthly 
samples are 

positive

(0) NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 0.34 NA 
Naturally present in the 

environment

Total Trihalomethanes 
[TTHM]

mg/L 80 NONE 2014 3.5 NA NA NA NA 2015 21.61 ND-29 
By-product of drinking 

water disinfection

Turbidity2 NTU 5 NONE 2013 0.4 ND-3.7 2015 0.46 0.21-1.08 2015 0.07 ND-0.15  Soil runoff

Uranium pCi/L 20 0.43
2008- 
2015

12 2.5-20 2013 9.4 NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits.

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Su

bs
ta

nc
es

Chloride mg/L 250 NONE 2013 34 5.5-84 2015 1.9 1.2-2.3 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 
deposits; seawater influence

Color Units 15 NONE 2013 ND NA 2015 ND ND 2015 0.09 ND-1.2 
Naturally occuring organic 

materials

Methelyne Blue Active 
Substances

mg/L 0.5 NONE 2013 0.01 ND-0.21      2014 ND NA NA NA NA 
Municipal and industrial 

waste discharge

Odor-Threshold TON 3 NONE 2013 1 NA 2015 1 NA 2015 1 NA 
Naturally occuring organic 

materials

Specific Conductance µS/cm 1600 NONE 2013 560 240-940 2015                 180 110-280 NA NA NA 
Substances that form ions 
when in water; seawater 

influence

Sulfate mg/L 500 NONE 2013 92 20-210 2015 4 1.3-8.4 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 

deposits; industrial wastes

Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 1000 NONE 2013 360 140-610 2015 100 74-140 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 

deposits

O
th

er
 S

ub
st

an
ce

s

Aggressive Index AI Non- 
aggressive NONE 2009 12.5 12-5 2009 10.84

10.65-
11.19

NA NA NA 
Influenced by hydrogen, 

carbon, oxygen, 
and temperature

Alkalinity mg/L NONE NONE 2013 130 98-170 2015 88 55-130 NA NA NA 
Function of carbonate, 

hydroxide, and bicarbonate; 
naturally occuring

Bicarbonate mg/L NONE NONE 2013 160 120-210 2015 110 67-160 NA NA NA  Naturally occurring

Calcium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 64 19-100 2015 22 12-37 NA NA NA 
Contributes to water 
hardness; naturally 

occurring

Hardness mg/L NONE NONE 2013 210 77-320                2015 64 30-110 NA NA NA  Naturally occurring

Magnesium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 11 1.9-20         2015 3.4 ND-3.6 NA NA NA 
Contributes to water 

hardness; naturally occuring

Potassium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 4 2.3-8.0  2015 3.5 1.7-5.3 NA NA NA 
Leaching from water 

softeners, fertilizers and 
natural deposits

pH NA NONE NONE 2013 7.7 7.3-8.1 2015 7.6 7.2-8.0 2015 8.0 7.5-8.3  Naturally occuring

Sodium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 30 20-78 2015 11 8.7-13 NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

U
nr

eg
ul

at
ed

 
Su

bs
ta

nc
es

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
Notification

Level

Groundwater Source Surface Water Source Distribution System Violation
Likely Source of 
ContaminationYear 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Yes No

Boron µg/L 1000 2013 2.9 ND-100 2015 ND ND NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Chlorate ug/L NONE 2013 64 22-380 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits

Molybdenum ug/L NONE 2013 4.7 3.4-13 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Strontium ug/L NONE 2013 250 70-450 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Vanadium ug/L 50 2013 5.4 2.0-16 2015 0.9 ND-3.7 NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits

Tap water samples were collected for lead and copper analyses from sample sites throughout the community.

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
AL PHG

Distribution System Violation

Likely Source of ContaminationYear 
Sampled

Amount Detected
(90th Percetile)

Sites Above AL/ 
Total Sites Yes No

Copper mg/L 1.3 0.3 2015 0.32 0/30 
Interal corrosion of household water plumbing systems; discharges 

from industrial manufacturers; erosion of natural deposits

Lead µg/L 15 0.2 2015 ND 0/30  Interal corrosion of household water plumbing systems; discharges 
from industrial manufacturers; erosion of natural deposits

• Amount detected based on average of samples  | 1 Highest LRAA for 2015  | 2 Turbidity is regulated as a TT for the surface sources (as a condition for filtration avoidance) and is a measure of the 
cloudiness of the water.  We monitor it because it is a good indicator of water quality. High turbidity can hinder the effectiveness of disinfectants. 

3 The MCL of 5 pCi/L is for combined radium (ra-226 + ra-228) | 4 This is the highest % of positive samples collected in any one monnth during the year.



R
eg

ul
at

ed
 S

ub
st

an
ce

s

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
MCL

[MRDL]

PHG
(MCLG)

[MRDLG]

Groundwater Source Surface Water Source Distribution System Violation
Likely source of 
contaminationYear 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Yes No

Barium mg/L 1 2 2013 0.08
ND - 
0.16

NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural desposits

Chlorine mg/L
[4.0 as 

Cl
2
]

[4 as Cl
2
] NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 0.411 ND-1.98 

Drinking water disinfectant 
added for treatment

Fluoride mg/L 2.0 1
2013-
2015

0.44
0.13-
0.83

2015 ND ND NA NA NA 

Erosion of natural desposits; 
water additive that promotes 
strong teeth; discharge from 

fertilizer and aluminum 
factories

Gross Alpha Particle 
Activity

pCi/L 15 (0)
2010-
2015

10 3.0-17 2013 ND ND NA NA NA  Erosion of natural desposits

Haloacetic Acids 
[HAA5]

ug/L 60 NONE NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 18.81 ND-20.9 
By-product of drinking 

water disinfection

Hexavalent Chromium ug/L 10 0.02 2014 1.06
0.062-

3.8
NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Discharge from 
electroplating factories, 
leather tanneries, wood 
preservation, chemical 
synthesis, refractory 

production, and textile 
manufacturing facilities; 

erosion of natural deposits.

Iron ug/L 300 NONE 2013 40 ND-540 2015 45 ND-180 NA NA NA 
Leaching from natural 

deposits; industrial waste

Nitrate mg/L 45 45 2015 5.0 ND-17 2015 ND ND NA NA NA 

Runoff and leaching from 
fertilizer use; leaching from 

septic tanks and sewage; 
erosion of natural deposits

Radium - 228 pCi/L 53 0.019
2009- 
2013

.03 ND-1.55 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits.

Total Coliform Bacteria
(Total Coliform Rule)

%

more than 
5% of 

monthly 
samples are 

positive

(0) NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 0.34 NA 
Naturally present in the 

environment

Total Trihalomethanes 
[TTHM]

µg/L 80 NONE 2014 3.5 NA NA NA NA 2015 21.61 ND-29 
By-product of drinking 

water disinfection

Turbidity2 NTU 5 NONE 2013 0.4 ND-3.7 2015 0.46 0.21-1.08 2015 0.07 ND-0.15  Soil runoff

Uranium pCi/L 20 0.43
2008- 
2015

12 2.5-20 2013 9.4 NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits.

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Su

bs
ta

nc
es

Chloride mg/L 250 NONE 2013 34 5.5-84 2015 1.9 1.2-2.3 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 
deposits; seawater influence

Color Units 15 NONE 2013 ND NA 2015 ND ND 2015 0.09 ND-1.2 
Naturally occuring organic 

materials

Methelyne Blue Active 
Substances

mg/L 0.5 NONE 2013 0.01 ND-0.21      2014 ND NA NA NA NA 
Municipal and industrial 

waste discharge

Odor-Threshold TON 3 NONE 2013 1 NA 2015 1 NA 2015 1 NA 
Naturally occuring organic 

materials

Specific Conductance µS/cm 1600 NONE 2013 560 240-940 2015                 180 110-280 NA NA NA 
Substances that form ions 
when in water; seawater 

influence

Sulfate mg/L 500 NONE 2013 92 20-210 2015 4 1.3-8.4 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 

deposits; industrial wastes

Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 1000 NONE 2013 360 140-610 2015 100 74-140 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 

deposits

O
th

er
 S

ub
st

an
ce

s

Aggressive Index AI Non- 
aggressive NONE 2009 12.5 12-5 2009 10.84

10.65-
11.19

NA NA NA 
Influenced by hydrogen, 

carbon, oxygen, 
and temperature

Alkalinity mg/L NONE NONE 2013 130 98-170 2015 88 55-130 NA NA NA 
Function of carbonate, 

hydroxide, and bicarbonate; 
naturally occuring

Bicarbonate mg/L NONE NONE 2013 160 120-210 2015 110 67-160 NA NA NA  Naturally occurring

Calcium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 64 19-100 2015 22 12-37 NA NA NA 
Contributes to water 
hardness; naturally 

occurring

Hardness mg/L NONE NONE 2013 210 77-320                2015 64 30-110 NA NA NA  Naturally occurring

Magnesium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 11 1.9-20         2015 3.4 ND-3.6 NA NA NA 
Contributes to water 

hardness; naturally occuring

Potassium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 4 2.3-8.0  2015 3.5 1.7-5.3 NA NA NA 
Leaching from water 

softeners, fertilizers and 
natural deposits

pH NA NONE NONE 2013 7.7 7.3-8.1 2015 7.6 7.2-8.0 2015 8.0 7.5-8.3  Naturally occuring

Sodium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 30 20-78 2015 11 8.7-13 NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

U
nr

eg
ul

at
ed

 
Su

bs
ta

nc
es

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
Notification

Level

Groundwater Source Surface Water Source Distribution System Violation
Likely Source of 
ContaminationYear 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Yes No

Boron µg/L 1000 2013 2.9 ND-100 2015 ND ND NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Chlorate µg/L NONE 2013 64 22-380 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits

Molybdenum µg/L NONE 2013 4.7 3.4-13 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Strontium µg/L NONE 2013 250 70-450 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Vanadium µg/L 50 2013 5.4 2.0-16 2015 0.9 ND-3.7 NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits

Tap water samples were collected for lead and copper analyses from sample sites throughout the community.

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
AL PHG

Distribution System Violation

Likely Source of ContaminationYear 
Sampled

Amount Detected
(90th Percetile)

Sites Above AL/ 
Total Sites Yes No

Copper mg/L 1.3 0.3 2015 0.32 0/30 
Interal corrosion of household water plumbing systems; discharges 

from industrial manufacturers; erosion of natural deposits

Lead µg/L 15 0.2 2015 ND 0/30  Interal corrosion of household water plumbing systems; discharges 
from industrial manufacturers; erosion of natural deposits

• Amount detected based on average of samples  | 1 Highest LRAA for 2015  | 2 Turbidity is regulated as a TT for the surface sources (as a condition for filtration avoidance) and is a measure of the 
cloudiness of the water.  We monitor it because it is a good indicator of water quality. High turbidity can hinder the effectiveness of disinfectants. 

3 The MCL of 5 pCi/L is for combined radium (ra-226 + ra-228) | 4 This is the highest % of positive samples collected in any one monnth during the year.



R
eg

ul
at

ed
 S

ub
st

an
ce

s

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
MCL

[MRDL]

PHG
(MCLG)

[MRDLG]

Groundwater Source Surface Water Source Distribution System Violation
Likely source of 
contaminationYear 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Yes No

Barium mg/L 1 2 2013 0.08
ND - 
0.16

NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural desposits

Chlorine mg/L
[4.0 as 

Cl
2
]

[4 as Cl
2
] NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 0.411 ND-1.98 

Drinking water disinfectant 
added for treatment

Fluoride mg/L 2.0 1
2013-
2015

0.44
0.13-
0.83

2015 ND ND NA NA NA 

Erosion of natural desposits; 
water additive that promotes 
strong teeth; discharge from 

fertilizer and aluminum 
factories

Gross Alpha Particle 
Activity

pCi/L 15 (0)
2010-
2015

10 3.0-17 2013 ND ND NA NA NA  Erosion of natural desposits

Haloacetic Acids 
[HAA5]

ug/L 60 NONE NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 18.81 ND-20.9 
By-product of drinking 

water disinfection

Hexavalent Chromium ug/L 10 0.02 2014 1.06
0.062-

3.8
NA NA NA NA NA NA 

Discharge from 
electroplating factories, 
leather tanneries, wood 
preservation, chemical 
synthesis, refractory 

production, and textile 
manufacturing facilities; 

erosion of natural deposits.

Iron ug/L 300 NONE 2013 40 ND-540 2015 45 ND-180 NA NA NA 
Leaching from natural 

deposits; industrial waste

Nitrate mg/L 45 45 2015 5.0 ND-17 2015 ND ND NA NA NA 

Runoff and leaching from 
fertilizer use; leaching from 

septic tanks and sewage; 
erosion of natural deposits

Radium - 228 pCi/L 53 0.019
2009- 
2013

.03 ND-1.55 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits.

Total Coliform Bacteria
(Total Coliform Rule)

%

more than 
5% of 

monthly 
samples are 

positive

(0) NA NA NA NA NA NA 2015 0.34 NA 
Naturally present in the 

environment

Total Trihalomethanes 
[TTHM]

µg/L 80 NONE 2014 3.5 NA NA NA NA 2015 21.61 ND-29 
By-product of drinking 

water disinfection

Turbidity2 NTU 5 NONE 2013 0.4 ND-3.7 2015 0.46 0.21-1.08 2015 0.07 ND-0.15  Soil runoff

Uranium pCi/L 20 0.43
2008- 
2015

12 2.5-20 2013 9.4 NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits.

Se
co

nd
ar

y 
Su

bs
ta

nc
es

Chloride mg/L 250 NONE 2013 34 5.5-84 2015 1.9 1.2-2.3 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 
deposits; seawater influence

Color Units 15 NONE 2013 ND NA 2015 ND ND 2015 0.09 ND-1.2 
Naturally occuring organic 

materials

Methelyne Blue Active 
Substances

mg/L 0.5 NONE 2013 0.01 ND-0.21      2014 ND NA NA NA NA 
Municipal and industrial 

waste discharge

Odor-Threshold TON 3 NONE 2013 1 NA 2015 1 NA 2015 1 NA 
Naturally occuring organic 

materials

Specific Conductance µS/cm 1600 NONE 2013 560 240-940 2015                 180 110-280 NA NA NA 
Substances that form ions 
when in water; seawater 

influence

Sulfate mg/L 500 NONE 2013 92 20-210 2015 4 1.3-8.4 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 

deposits; industrial wastes

Total Dissolved Solids mg/L 1000 NONE 2013 360 140-610 2015 100 74-140 NA NA NA 
Runoff/leaching from natural 

deposits

O
th

er
 S

ub
st

an
ce

s

Aggressive Index AI Non- 
aggressive NONE 2009 12.5 12-5 2009 10.84

10.65-
11.19

NA NA NA 
Influenced by hydrogen, 

carbon, oxygen, 
and temperature

Alkalinity mg/L NONE NONE 2013 130 98-170 2015 88 55-130 NA NA NA 
Function of carbonate, 

hydroxide, and bicarbonate; 
naturally occuring

Bicarbonate mg/L NONE NONE 2013 160 120-210 2015 110 67-160 NA NA NA  Naturally occurring

Calcium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 64 19-100 2015 22 12-37 NA NA NA 
Contributes to water 
hardness; naturally 

occurring

Hardness mg/L NONE NONE 2013 210 77-320                2015 64 30-110 NA NA NA  Naturally occurring

Magnesium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 11 1.9-20         2015 3.4 ND-3.6 NA NA NA 
Contributes to water 

hardness; naturally occuring

Potassium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 4 2.3-8.0  2015 3.5 1.7-5.3 NA NA NA 
Leaching from water 

softeners, fertilizers and 
natural deposits

pH NA NONE NONE 2013 7.7 7.3-8.1 2015 7.6 7.2-8.0 2015 8.0 7.5-8.3  Naturally occuring

Sodium mg/L NONE NONE 2013 30 20-78 2015 11 8.7-13 NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

U
nr

eg
ul

at
ed

 
Su

bs
ta

nc
es

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
Notification

Level

Groundwater Source Surface Water Source Distribution System Violation
Likely Source of 
ContaminationYear 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Year 

Sampled
Amount 

Detected*
Range

(Low-High)
Yes No

Boron µg/L 1000 2013 2.9 ND-100 2015 ND ND NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Chlorate µg/L NONE 2013 64 22-380 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits

Molybdenum µg/L NONE 2013 4.7 3.4-13 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Strontium µg/L NONE 2013 250 70-450 NA NA NA NA NA NA  Naturally occuring

Vanadium µg/L 50 2013 5.4 2.0-16 2015 0.9 ND-3.7 NA NA NA  Erosion of natural deposits

Tap water samples were collected for lead and copper analyses from sample sites throughout the community.

Substance
Unit of 

Measure
AL PHG

Distribution System Violation

Likely Source of ContaminationYear 
Sampled

Amount Detected
(90th Percetile)

Sites Above AL/ 
Total Sites Yes No

Copper mg/L 1.3 0.3 2015 0.32 0/30 
Interal corrosion of household water plumbing systems; discharges 

from industrial manufacturers; erosion of natural deposits

Lead µg/L 15 0.2 2015 ND 0/30  Interal corrosion of household water plumbing systems; discharges 
from industrial manufacturers; erosion of natural deposits

• Amount detected based on average of samples  | 1 Highest LRAA for 2015  | 2 Turbidity is regulated as a TT for the surface sources (as a condition for filtration avoidance) and is a measure of the 
cloudiness of the water.  We monitor it because it is a good indicator of water quality. High turbidity can hinder the effectiveness of disinfectants. 

3 The MCL of 5 pCi/L is for combined radium (ra-226 + ra-228) | 4 This is the highest % of positive samples collected in any one monnth during the year.



Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL):  
The highest level of a contaminant that is 
allowed in drinking water.  Primary MCLs 
are set as close to the (PHGs or MCLGs) as 
is economically and technologically feasible.  
Secondary MCLs are set to protect the odor, 
taste, and appearance of drinking water.

Maximum Contaminant Level Goal 
(MCLG): The level of a contaminant in 
drinking water, below, which there is no 
known or expected risk to health.  MCLG’s 
are set by the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency.

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level 
(MRDL):  The highest level of a disinfectant 
allowed in drinking water. There is 
convincing evidence that addition of a 
disinfectant is necessary for control of 
microbial contaminants.

Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal 
(MRDLG):  The level of a drinking water 
disinfectant below which there is no known 
or expected risk to health. MRDLGs do not 
reflect the benefits of the use of disinfectants 
to control microbial contaminants. MRDLGs 
are set by the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency.

Microsiemens Per Centimeter (µS/cm): A 
measurement of the electrolytes in the water, 
which determines the ability of the water to 
conduct electrical current.  

Micrograms Per Liter (µg/L): A measure of 
a contaminant in a known quantity of water. 
1 µg/L equals 1 part per billion (see parts 
per billion).

Milligrams Per Liter (mg/L): A measure of a 
contaminant in a known quantity of water. 
1 mg/L equals 1 part per million (see parts 
per million).

NA:  Not applicable.

Nanograms per Liter (ng/L): A measurement 
of a contaminant in a known quantity of 
water. 1ng/L equals 1 part per trillion. (see 
parts per trillion).

ND: Not detected or below the detection 
limit for reporting.

Nephelometric Turbidity Units (NTU): A 
measure of cloudiness due to undissolved 
solids in the water.  We measure turbidity 
because it is a good indication of the 
effectiveness of our filtration system and/or 
water quality.

Notification Level (NL): Health-based 
advisory levels established by the State 
for chemicals in drinking water that lack 
maximum caontaminant levels (MCLs). 
When chemicals are found at concentrations 
greater than their notification levels, certain 
requirements and recommendations apply.

Parts Per Billion (PPB):  One part per billion 
corresponds to one minute in 2,000 years 
or one penny in $10,000,000.  (Ten million 
dollars).

Parts Per Million (PPM): One part per 
million corresponds to one minute in 
two years or one penny in $10,000. (Ten 
thousand dollars).

pH: An expression of the intensity of the 
basic or acid condition of a liquid.  The pH 
may range from 0 to 14, where 0 is most acid, 
14 most basic and 7 neutral.

PicoCuries per Liter (pCi/L):  A measure of 
the radioactivity in the water. 

Primary Drinking Water Standard (PDWS):  
MCLs and MRDLs for contaminants that 
affect health along with their monitoring and 
reporting requirements and water treatment 
requirements.

Public Health Goal (PHG): The level of 
a contaminant in drinking water, below, 
which there is no known or expected risk 
to health.  PHGs are set by the California 
Environmental Protection Agency.

Regulatory Action Level (AL): The 
concentration of a contaminant, which 
if exceeded, triggers treatment or other 
requirements, such as public notification, 
that a water system must follow. 

Locational Running Annual Average 
(LRAA): The average of sample analytical 
results for samples taken during the previous 
four calendar quarters.

Treatment Technique (TT): A required 
process intended to reduce the level of a 
contaminant in drinking water.

UCMR:  Unregulated Contaminant 
Monitoring Rule

Variances and Exemptions: SWRCB 
permission to exceed an MCL or not comply 
with a treatment technique under certain 
conditions.

< Means “less than”: For example <0.2 
means the lowest detectable levels is 0.2 and 
that the contaminant was less than 0.2 and 
therefore not detected.

> Means “greater than”: For example >0.1 
means any sample tested having a value 
greater than 0.1.

GLOSSARY



Contact Us :

Board Meetings are held the first and third 
Tuesdays of each month at 8 a.m. at the 
Desert Water Agency’s Operations Center - 
Board Room, 1200 Gene Autry Trail South, 

Palm Springs, California.

1200 Gene Autry Trail South
Palm Springs, CA 92264
(760) 323-4971
www.dwa.org

James Cioffi
President

Board of Directors

Joseph K. Stuart 
Vice President

Kristin Bloomer 
Secretary - Treasurer

Craig EWING 
Director

Patricia G. Oygar 
Director

Este informe contiene información muy importante sobre su agua de beber. Tradúzcalo ó hable con alguien que lo entienda bien.



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 1 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Health Risk Information for  
Public Health Goal Exceedance Reports 

 
Prepared by 

 
Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 

California Environmental Protection Agency 

February 2016 
 

Under the Calderon-Sher Safe Drinking Water Act of 1996 (the Act), water utilities are 
required to prepare a report every three years for contaminants that exceed public 
health goals (PHGs) (Health and Safety Code Section 116470 (b)(2)).  The numerical 
health risk for a contaminant is to be presented with the category of health risk, along 
with a plainly worded description of these terms.  The cancer health risk is to be 
calculated at the PHG and at the California maximum contaminant level (MCL).  This 
report is prepared by the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) 
to assist the water utilities in meeting their requirements. 

PHGs are concentrations of contaminants in drinking water that pose no significant 
health risk if consumed for a lifetime.  PHGs are developed and published by OEHHA 
(Health and Safety Code Section 116365) using current risk assessment principles, 
practices and methods.   

Numerical health risks.  Table 1 presents health risk categories and cancer risk values 
for chemical contaminants in drinking water that have PHGs.   

The Act requires that OEHHA publish PHGs based on health risk assessments using 
the most current scientific methods.  As defined in statute, PHGs for non-carcinogenic 
chemicals in drinking water are set at a concentration “at which no known or anticipated 
adverse health effects will occur, with an adequate margin of safety.”  For carcinogens, 
PHGs are set at a concentration that “does not pose any significant risk to health.”  
PHGs provide one basis for revising MCLs, along with cost and technological feasibility.  
OEHHA has been publishing PHGs since 1997 and the entire list published to date is 
shown in Table 1. 

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 2 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 2 presents health risk information for contaminants that do not have PHGs but 
have state or federal regulatory standards.  The Act requires that, for chemical 
contaminants with California MCLs that do not yet have PHGs, water utilities use the 
federal maximum contaminant level goal (MCLG) for the purpose of complying with the 
requirement of public notification.  MCLGs, like PHGs, are strictly health based and 
include a margin of safety.  One difference, however, is that the MCLGs for carcinogens 
are set at zero because the US Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA) assumes 
there is no absolutely safe level of exposure to such chemicals.  PHGs, on the other 
hand, are set at a level considered to pose no significant risk of cancer; this is usually a 
no more than one-in-one-million excess cancer risk (110-6) level for a lifetime of 
exposure.  In Table 2, the cancer risks shown are based on the US EPA’s evaluations.  

For more information on health risks:  The adverse health effects for each chemical 
with a PHG are summarized in a PHG technical support document.  These documents 
are available on the OEHHA Web site (http://www.oehha.ca.gov).  Also, technical fact 
sheets on most of the chemicals having federal MCLs can be found at 
http://www.epa.gov/your-drinking-water/table-regulated-drinking-water-contaminants.   

http://www.oehha.ca.gov/
http://www.epa.gov/your-drinking-water/table-regulated-drinking-water-contaminants
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 3 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Alachlor  carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

0.004 NA5 0.002 NA 

Aluminum neurotoxicity and 
immunotoxicity 

(harms the nervous and 
immune systems) 

0.6 NA 1 NA 

Antimony digestive system toxicity  
(causes vomiting) 

0.02 NA 0.006 NA 

Arsenic carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

               

0.000004 
(4×10-6) 

110-6 
(one per 
million) 

0.01 2.510-3 
(2.5 per 

thousand) 

Asbestos carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

 7 MFL6 
(fibers 
>10 
microns in 
length) 

110-6  7 MFL 
(fibers 
>10 
microns in 
length) 

110-6 
(one per 
million) 

Atrazine carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00015 110-6 0.001 710-6 

(seven per 
million) 

 
1 Based on the OEHHA PHG technical support document unless otherwise specified.   The categories are 
the hazard traits defined by OEHHA for California’s Toxics Information Clearinghouse (online at: 
http://oehha.ca.gov/multimedia/green/pdf/GC_Regtext011912.pdf). 
2 mg/L = milligrams per liter of water or parts per million (ppm)  
3 Cancer Risk = Upper estimate of excess cancer risk from lifetime exposure.  Actual cancer risk may be 
lower or zero.  110-6 means one excess cancer case per million people exposed. 
4 MCL = maximum contaminant level. 
5 NA = not applicable.  Risk cannot be calculated.  The PHG is set at a level that is believed to be without 
any significant public health risk to individuals exposed to the chemical over a lifetime. 
6 MFL = million fibers per liter of water. 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/alachc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/aluminumf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/anti3c.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/asfinal.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4asbestos92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/atrazf.pdf
http://oehha.ca.gov/multimedia/green/pdf/GC_Regtext011912.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 4 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Barium cardiovascular toxicity 
(causes high blood 

pressure) 

2 NA 1 NA 

Bentazon hepatotoxicity and 
digestive system toxicity 

(harms the liver, 
intestine, and causes 
body weight effects7) 

0.2 NA 0.018 NA 

Benzene carcinogenicity 
(causes leukemia) 

0.00015 110-6 0.001 710-6 
(seven per 

million) 

Benzo[a]pyrene carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.000007 
(710-6) 

110-6  0.0002 310-5 
(three per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Beryllium digestive system toxicity 
(harms the stomach or 

intestine) 

0.001 NA 0.004 NA 

Bromate carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0001 110-6 0.01 110-4 

(one per 
ten 

thousand) 

Cadmium nephrotoxicity 
(harms the kidney) 

0.00004 NA 0.005 NA 

Carbofuran reproductive toxicity 
(harms the testis) 

0.0017 NA 0.018 NA 

 
7 Body weight effects are an indicator of general toxicity in animal studies. 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4ba092603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/bentazon092809.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/benzenefinphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/091610benzopyrene.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/bephg92303.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/bromatephg010110.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206cadmiumphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/carbofur.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 5 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Carbon 
tetrachloride 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0001 110-6 0.0005 510-6 
(five per 
million) 

Chlordane carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00003 110-6 0.0001 310-6 
(three per 

million) 

Chlorite hematotoxicity   
(causes anemia) 

neurotoxicity  
(causes neurobehavioral 

effects) 

0.05 NA 1 NA 

Chromium, 
hexavalent 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00002 110-6 0.01 5×10-4  

(five per 
ten 

thousand) 

Copper digestive system toxicity  
(causes nausea, 

vomiting, diarrhea) 

0.3 NA 1.3 (AL8) NA 

Cyanide neurotoxicity  
(damages nerves) 
endocrine toxicity 

(affects the thyroid) 

0.15 NA 0.15 NA 

Dalapon nephrotoxicity 
(harms the kidney) 

0.79 NA 0.2 NA 

 
8 AL = action level. The action levels for copper and lead refer to a concentration measured at the tap.  Much 
of the copper and lead in drinking water is derived from household plumbing (The Lead and Copper Rule, 
Title 22, California Code of Regulations [CCR] section 64672.3). 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/carbtet.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/carbtet.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206chlordane.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/chloritephgfinal052209.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/cr6phg072911.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/cr6phg072911.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/copperphg020808.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/cyanc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dalapon61909.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 6 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

1,2-Dibromo-3-
chloropropane 
(DBCP) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0000017 
(1.7x10-6) 

110-6 0.0002 110-4 

(one per 
ten 

thousand) 

1,2-Dichloro-
benzene (o-
DCB) 

hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

0.6 NA 0.6 NA 

1,4-Dichloro-
benzene (p-
DCB) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.006 110-6 0.005 810-7 
(eight per 

ten million) 

1,1-Dichloro-
ethane (1,1-
DCA) 

carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

0.003 110-6 0.005 210-6 
(two per 
million) 

1,2-Dichloro-
ethane (1,2-
DCA) 

carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

0.0004 110-6 0.0005 110-6 
(one per 
million) 

1,1-Dichloro-
ethylene 
(1,1-DCE) 

hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

0.01 NA 0.006 NA 

1,2-Dichloro-
ethylene, cis 

nephrotoxicity 
(harms the kidney) 

0.1 NA 0.006 NA 

1,2-Dichloro-
ethylene, trans 

hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

0.06 NA 0.01 NA 

Dichloromethane 
(methylene 
chloride) 

carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

0.004 110-6 0.005 110-6 
(one per 
million) 

2,4-Dichloro-
phenoxyacetic 
acid (2,4-D) 

hepatotoxicity and 
nephrotoxicity 

(harms the liver and 
kidney) 

0.02 NA 0.07 NA 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dbcpf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dbcpf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dbcpf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/08130912dmemo.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/08130912dmemo.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/08130912dmemo.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/14dcbc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/14dcbc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/14dcbc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph411dca92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph411dca92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph411dca92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/12dcamemo.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/12dcamemo.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/12dcamemo.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/11dcef.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/11dcef.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/11dcef.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgcistrans030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgcistrans030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgcistrans030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgcistrans030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dcm.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dcm.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dcm.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/24dphg010209.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/24dphg010209.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/24dphg010209.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 7 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

1,2-Dichloro-
propane 
(propylene 
dichloride) 

carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

0.0005 110-6 0.005 110-5 
(one per 
hundred 

thousand) 

1,3-Dichloro-
propene 
(Telone II) 

carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

0.0002 110-6 0.0005 210-6 
(two per 
million) 

Di(2-ethylhexyl) 
adipate (DEHA) 

developmental toxicity 
(disrupts development) 

0.2 NA 0.4 NA 

Diethylhexyl-
phthalate 
(DEHP) 

carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer) 

0.012 110-6 0.004 310-7 
(three per 
ten million) 

Dinoseb reproductive toxicity 
(harms the uterus and 

testis) 

0.014 NA 0.007 NA 

Dioxin (2,3,7,8-
TCDD) 

carcinogenicity 
(causes cancer) 

 

510-11 110-6 310-8 610-4 
(six per ten 
thousand) 

Diquat ocular toxicity 
(harms the eye) 

developmental toxicity 
(causes malformation) 

0.015 NA 0.02 NA 

Endothall digestive system toxicity  
(harms the stomach or 

intestine) 

0.094 NA 0.1 NA 

Endrin hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

neurotoxicity  
(causes convulsions) 

0.0018 NA 0.002 NA 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/12dcpf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/12dcpf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/12dcpf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/12dcpf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206telone.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206telone.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206telone.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4deha92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4deha92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dehpc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dehpc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/dehpc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/061610dinosebmemofinal.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/091610tcddphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/091610tcddphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/diquat.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/endrin101008.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 8 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Ethylbenzene 
(phenylethane) 

hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

0.3 NA 0.3 NA 

Ethylene 
dibromide 

carcinogenicity 
(causes cancer) 

0.00001 110-6 0.00005 510-6  
(five per 
million) 

Fluoride musculoskeletal toxicity 
(causes tooth mottling) 

1 NA 2 NA 

Glyphosate nephrotoxicity 
(harms the kidney) 

0.9 NA 0.7 NA 

Heptachlor carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.000008 
(8×10-6) 

110-6 0.00001 110-6 
(one per 
million) 

Heptachlor 
epoxide 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.000006 
(6×10-6) 

110-6 0.00001 210-6 
(two per 
million) 

Hexachloroben-
zene 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00003 110-6 0.001 310-5 
(three per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Hexachloro-
cyclopentadiene 
(HCCPD)  

digestive system toxicity 
(causes stomach 

lesions) 

0.002 NA 0.05 NA 

Lead developmental 
neurotoxicity 

(causes neurobehavioral 
effects in children)  

cardiovascular toxicity 
(causes high blood 

pressure) 
carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0002 <110-6 

(PHG is 
not based 

on this 
effect) 

0.015 
(AL8) 

210-6 
(two per 
million) 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/etbx2c.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/etbx2c.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4edb92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4edb92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/fluorc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/glyphg062907.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/hepandox_1.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/hepandox_1.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/hepandox_1.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4hcb92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4hcb92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_3.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_3.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_3.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/leadfinalphg042409.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 9 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Lindane 
(-BHC) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.000032 110-6 0.0002 610-6 
(six per 
million) 

Mercury 
(inorganic) 

nephrotoxicity 
(harms the kidney) 

0.0012 NA 0.002 NA 

Methoxychlor endocrine toxicity 
(causes hormone 

effects) 

0.00009 NA 0.03 NA 

Methyl tertiary-
butyl ether 
(MTBE) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.013 110-6 0.013 110-6 
(one per 
million) 

Molinate carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.001 110-6 0.02 210-5 
(two per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Monochloro-
benzene 
(chlorobenzene) 

nephrotoxicity 
(harms the kidney) 

0.07 NA 0.07 NA 

Nickel developmental toxicity 
(causes increased 
neonatal deaths) 

0.012 NA 0.1 NA 

Nitrate hematotoxicity   
(causes 

methemoglobinemia) 

45 as 
nitrate 

NA 10 as 
nitrogen 
(=45 as 
nitrate) 

NA 

Nitrite hematotoxicity   
(causes 

methemoglobinemia) 

1 as 
nitrogen 

NA 1 as 
nitrogen 

NA 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/lindanememo062205.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/lindanememo062205.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/hgmemophgupdate.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/hgmemophgupdate.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/091610mxc.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/mtbef.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/mtbef.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/mtbef.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/molinate070208.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_1.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_1.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_1.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/nickel82001.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/nit2c_2.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/nit2c_2.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 10 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Nitrate and 
Nitrite 

hematotoxicity   
(causes 

methemoglobinemia) 

10 as 
nitrogen 

NA 10 as 
nitrogen 

NA 

N-nitroso-
dimethyl-amine 
(NDMA) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.000003 
(310-6) 

1×10-6 none NA 

Oxamyl general toxicity 
(causes body weight 

effects) 

0.026 NA 0.05 NA 

Pentachloro-
phenol (PCP) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0003 110-6 0.001 310-6 
(three per 

million) 

Perchlorate endocrine toxicity 
(affects the thyroid) 

developmental toxicity 
(causes neurodevelop-

mental deficits) 

0.001 NA 0.006 NA 

Picloram hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

0.5 NA 0.5 NA 

Polychlorinated 
biphenyls 
(PCBs) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00009 110-6 0.0005 610-6 
(six per 
million) 

Radium-226 carcinogenicity    
(causes cancer)  

0.05 pCi/L 110-6 5 pCi/L 
(combined 
Ra226+228) 

110-4 
(one per 

ten 
thousand) 

Radium-228 carcinogenicity    
(causes cancer)   

0.019 pCi/L 110-6 5 pCi/L 
(combined 
Ra226+228) 

310-4 
(three per 

ten 
thousand) 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/nit2c_2.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/nit2c_2.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206ndmaphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206ndmaphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122206ndmaphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/oxamylfinal042409.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pcpfinal042409.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pcpfinal042409.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/public-health-goal/perchloratephgfeb2015.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/picr2c.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pcbphg10052007.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pcbphg10052007.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pcbphg10052007.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgradium030306_1.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgradium030306_1.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 11 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Selenium integumentary toxicity 
(causes hair loss and 

nail damage) 

0.03 NA 0.05 NA 

Silvex (2,4,5-TP) hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

0.003 NA 0.05 NA 

Simazine general toxicity 
(causes body weight 

effects) 

0.004 NA 0.004 NA 

Strontium-90 carcinogenicity     
(causes cancer)  

0.35 pCi/L 1×10-6 8 pCi/L 210-5 
(two per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Styrene 
(vinylbenzene) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0005 1×10-6 0.1 210-4 
(two per 

ten 
thousand) 

1,1,2,2-
Tetrachloro-
ethane 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0001 110-6 0.001 110-5 
(one per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Tetrachloro-
ethylene 
(perchloro-
ethylene, or 
PCE) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00006 110-6 0.005 810-5 
(eight per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Thallium integumentary toxicity 
(causes hair loss) 

0.0001 NA 0.002 NA 

Thiobencarb general toxicity 
(causes body weight 

effects)  
hematotoxicity  

(affects red blood cells) 

0.07 NA 0.07 NA 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/seleniumphg121010.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_0.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/simazine92001.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgstrontium030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122810styrene.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/122810styrene.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph41122tca92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph41122tca92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph41122tca92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pceaug2001.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pceaug2001.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pceaug2001.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pceaug2001.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/pceaug2001.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/thall1104.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/thioben.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 12 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

Toluene 
(methylbenzene) 

hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 
endocrine toxicity 

(harms the thymus) 

0.15 NA 0.15 NA 

Toxaphene carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00003 110-6 0.003 110-4 
(one per 

ten 
thousand) 

1,2,4-Trichloro-
benzene 
 

endocrine toxicity 
(harms adrenal glands) 

0.005 NA 0.005 NA 

1,1,1-Trichloro-
ethane 

neurotoxicity  
(harms the nervous 

system),  
reproductive toxicity 

(causes fewer offspring) 
hepatotoxicity  

(harms the liver)  
hematotoxicity  

(causes blood effects) 

1 NA 0.2 NA 

1,1,2-Trichloro-
ethane 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0003 1x10-6 0.005 210-5 
(two per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Trichloro-
ethylene (TCE) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0017 110-6 0.005 310-6 
(three per 

million) 

Trichlorofluoro-
methane 
(Freon 11) 

accelerated mortality 
(increase in early death) 

1.3 NA 0.15 NA 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/toluf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/toluf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/ph4toxap92603.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/124tcbf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/124tcbf.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phg111tca030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phg111tca030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phg112tca030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phg112tca030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/tcephg070909.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/tcephg070909.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_4.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_4.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/042414phgtechfinal_4.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 13 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 1:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
with California Public Health Goals (PHGs) 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
California 

PHG 
(mg/L)2 

Cancer 
Risk3  
at the 
PHG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk at the 
California 

MCL 

1,2,3-Trichloro-
propane 
(1,2,3-TCP) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.0000007 
(7×10-7) 

1x10-6 none NA 

1,1,2-Trichloro-
1,2,2-trifluoro-
ethane  
(Freon 113) 

hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

4 NA 1.2 NA 

Tritium carcinogenicity      
(causes cancer) 

400 pCi/L 1x10-6 20,000 
pCi/L 

5x10-5 
(five per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Uranium carcinogenicity      
(causes cancer)  

0.43 pCi/L 110-6 20 pCi/L 510-5 
(five per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Vinyl chloride carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0.00005 110-6 0.0005 110-5 
(one per 
hundred 

thousand) 

Xylene neurotoxicity 
(affects the senses, 
mood, and motor 

control) 

1.8 (single 
isomer or 

sum of 
isomers) 

NA 1.75 (single 
isomer or 

sum of 
isomers) 

NA 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/082009tcpphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/082009tcpphg.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/082009tcpphg.pdf
http://www.oehha.ca.gov/water/phg/freon021011.html
http://www.oehha.ca.gov/water/phg/freon021011.html
http://www.oehha.ca.gov/water/phg/freon021011.html
http://www.oehha.ca.gov/water/phg/freon021011.html
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/phgtritium030306.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/uranium801.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/vinylch.pdf
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/xylenc.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 14 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 2:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
without California Public Health Goals 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
 

U.S. EPA 
MCLG2 
(mg/L)  

Cancer 
Risk3 

@ 
MCLG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk @ 

California 
MCL  

Disinfection byproducts (DBPS) 

Chloramines acute toxicity  
(causes irritation) 

digestive system toxicity 
(harms the stomach) 

hematotoxicity  
(causes anemia) 

45,6 NA7 none NA 

Chlorine acute toxicity  
(causes irritation) 

digestive system toxicity 
(harms the stomach) 

45,6 NA none NA 

Chlorine dioxide hematotoxicity  
(causes anemia) 

neurotoxicity  
(harms the nervous 

system) 

0.85,6 NA none NA 

Disinfection byproducts: haloacetic acids (HAA5) 

Chloroacetic acid general toxicity 
(causes body and organ 

weight changes8) 

0.07 NA none NA 

 
1 Health risk category based on the U.S. EPA MCLG document or California MCL document 
unless otherwise specified. 
2 MCLG = maximum contaminant level goal established by U.S. EPA. 
3 Cancer Risk = Upper estimate of excess cancer risk from lifetime exposure.  Actual cancer risk 
may be lower or zero.  110-6 means one excess cancer case per million people exposed. 
4 California MCL = maximum contaminant level established by California. 
5 Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level Goal, or MRDLG. 
6 The federal Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level (MRDL), or highest level of disinfectant 
allowed in drinking water, is the same value for this chemical. 
7 NA = not available. 
8 Body weight effects are an indicator of general toxicity in animal studies. 

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 15 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 2:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
without California Public Health Goals 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
 

U.S. EPA 
MCLG2 
(mg/L)  

Cancer 
Risk3 

@ 
MCLG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk @ 

California 
MCL  

Dichloroacetic 
acid 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0 0 none NA 

Trichloroacetic 
acid 

hepatotoxicity 
(harms the liver) 

0.02 0 none NA 

Bromoacetic acid NA none NA none NA 

Dibromoacetic 
acid 

NA none NA none NA 

Total haloacetic 
acids 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

none NA 0.06 NA 

Disinfection byproducts: trihalomethanes (THMs)  

Bromodichloro-
methane (BDCM) 

carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0 0 none NA 

Bromoform carcinogenicity   
(causes cancer) 

0 0 none NA 

Chloroform hepatotoxicity and 
nephrotoxicity 

(harms the liver and 
kidney) 

0.07 NA none NA 

Dibromo-
chloromethane 
(DBCM) 

hepatotoxicity, 
nephrotoxicity, and 

neurotoxicity 
(harms the liver, kidney, 

and nervous system) 

0.06 NA none NA 

Total 
trihalomethanes 
(sum of BDCM, 
bromoform, 
chloroform and 
DBCM) 

carcinogenicity  
(causes cancer), 
hepatotoxicity, 

nephrotoxicity, and 
neurotoxicity 

(harms the liver, kidney, 
and nervous system) 

none NA 0.08 NA 

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment Page 16 
Water Toxicology Section 
February 2016 

Table 2:  Health Risk Categories and Cancer Risk Values for Chemicals 
without California Public Health Goals 

Chemical Health Risk Category1 
 

U.S. EPA 
MCLG2 
(mg/L)  

Cancer 
Risk3 

@ 
MCLG 

California 
MCL4 
(mg/L) 

Cancer 
Risk @ 

California 
MCL  

Radionuclides 

Gross alpha 
particles9 

carcinogenicity       
(causes cancer) 

0 (210Po 
included) 

0 15 pCi/L10 
(includes 
226Ra but 
not radon 

and 
uranium) 

up to 1x10-3 
(for 210Po, 
the most 
potent 
alpha 

emitter 

Beta particles and 
photon emitters9 

carcinogenicity    
(causes cancer)   

0 (210Pb 
included) 

0 50 pCi/L 
(judged 

equiv. to 4 
mrem/yr) 

up to 2x10-3 
(for 210Pb, 
the most 
potent 
beta-

emitter) 

 

 
9 MCLs for gross alpha and beta particles are screening standards for a group of radionuclides.  
Corresponding PHGs were not developed for gross alpha and beta particles.  See the OEHHA 
memoranda discussing the cancer risks at these MCLs at  
http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/grossalphahealth.pdf. 
10 pCi/L = picocuries per liter of water. 

http://oehha.studio-weeren.com/media/downloads/water/chemicals/phg/grossalphahealth.pdf
Sylvia
Typewritten Text

Sylvia
Typewritten Text
Reference #4



7-B 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JULY 19, 2016 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1141, GRANTING 

RETIREMENT STATUS TO DEBBIE RANDALL WITH APPRECIATION 
  
Attached is a copy of Resolution No. 1141 officially granting retirement status to 
Senior Engineering Technician, Debbie Randall. 
 
Ms. Randall will be presented a copy of Resolution No. 1141 acknowledging her 
24 years of dedicated service and loyalty to Desert Water Agency. 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1141 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 

GRANTING RETIREMENT STATUS TO 
DEBBIE RANDALL 

 
 WHEREAS, Debbie Randall began her service with Desert Water Agency on June 22, 1992 as a 
Service Planner I in the Engineering Department and was quickly promoted to Service Planner II in 1994, 
Service Planner III in 1999, Senior Service Planner in 2001 and on January 1, 2008 was promoted to Senior 
Engineering Technician; and is concluding her career in that capacity; and  
 
 WHEREAS, over her career with Desert Water Agency, Debbie has assisted developers with 
numerous projects, to include Escena, Arrive Hotel, Ace Hotel remodel, Desert Fashion Plaza, Desert 
Palisade Tract, Mountain Gate Tract, Smoke Tree Commons, Downtown Cathedral City, and Cathedral 
Canyon Plaza; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Debbie has helped manage the Agency’s Cross-Connection Program, Water 
Loss/Leak Tracking Program, and the annual Health Department Statistical Report; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2011, Debbie authored the cross connection procedures for each recycled water 
user and created a Recycle Water User Guide to assist recycled water users; and   
   
 WHEREAS, Debbie has always been a conscientious, dependable and punctual employee who is a 
team player who always offers to help wherever and whenever needed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Debbie has shared her knowledge and experience by cross-training and mentoring 
other Engineering Technicians in the Engineering Department for their advancement; and  
   

WHEREAS, Debbie has consistently provided excellent customer service to the community and 
served her fellow employees with a courteous and friendly personality; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Desert Water Agency is deeply appreciative of this employee’s loyalty, honesty, 
integrity, competency and conscientious service in her duties, and  her willingness to assist others whenever 
necessary for the completion of a project or special assignment; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Debbie has served as an outstanding role model with respect to her work ethics and 
has consistently performed her duties meticulously and with commitment to the highest standards required 
in conjunction with fulfilling her responsibilities, and has done so with the Agency’s best interest in mind;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Desert Water Agency Board of Directors that  

 
DEBBIE RANDALL 

 
is, with infinite thanks and appreciation for her 24 years of service to the Desert Water Agency, and our 
community, hereby granted the status of retirement.   It is the wish of the Board that Debbie spends 
countless years enjoying a happy and healthy retirement, for she has earned it.  
 
 ADOPTED this 19th day of July, 2016, with retirement effective July 15, 2016. 
 

       
  James Cioffi, President 
  Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 
 
          
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors                                                       



7-C 

2016/mark/071916penaltyhearingstaffreport 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JULY 19, 2016 

 
RE: WATER USE VIOLATION – CIVIL PENALTY HEARINGS 
 
Starting after the March 1st board meeting, staff began issuing water use violations 
under the new ordinance; to date, more than 250 violations have been issued.  
Recipients of the violations have 7 days to request a hearing in writing.  Staff has 
received three such requests for a hearing on the violations since the last hearing on 
June 7. Two violations have hearings scheduled for today’s board meeting, one 
requested to be heard at the August 2 Board meeting due to a scheduling conflict. 

The following is a summary of the procedure for the hearings. 

Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for each of the violations 
including photographic evidence.  Photographs will also be projected during the hearing 
to provide the board and customer a common point of reference for discussion. 

Staff will introduce each violation with a summary of the event.  After the introduction 
the customer will be invited by the Board to speak concerning the violation.  If the 
recipient of the violation is not present or does not wish to speak, staff will read the 
violation summary and submit the written petition into the record for board action. 

Each petition will be discussed and voted on separately. 

As a point of reference, Staff has notified Agency customers concerning water 
conservation regulations in several different ways: 

Recent Notifications 

1. Published the ordinance in The Public Record 
2. Published the ordinance in the Agency Website 
3. Social media outlets 
4. KMIR, KESQ, KPCC, the Joey English Show 
5. Desert Sun Valley Voice 
6. Palm Desert Patch 
7. Email to Palm Springs and Cathedral City Chambers 
8. Emails to HOA in our contact list 
9. Emails to high volume users 

 



2016/mark/071916penaltyhearingstaffreport 

 

 

Comprehensive Notifications – Since June 2015 

1. Direct mail to all customers 
2. Bill Inserts 
3. Bill on envelope messaging 
4. Billboards 
5. Online advertising (KESQ) 
6. Television advertising (Time Warner) 
7. Social media 
8. Several public presentations on TV 
9. Print and radio Interviews 
10. DWA and CVWD websites 

 



1. Beverly Elmore, 220 N Farrell Drive 

 

a. On Monday, May 9 at 7:36 a.m. a Desert Water Agency representative 
observed water use violations at said address and reported them. 

i. Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 
 

b. Fine amount $50 
i. Single-family home 
ii. First violation  

 
c. Reason for petition 

i. Valve issue 
 
 

  







 
 
Beverly Elmore                                                                       May 9, 2016 
% Monique Carrier 
220 N Farrell Dr 
Palm Springs, CA 92262 
 

RE: FINE ON ACCOUNT#  220 N Farrell Dr 
 

Dear Valued Customer: 
 
Due to a water use violation observed and documented by a Desert Water Agency representative on 
Monday, May 9, 2016 at 7:36 am, you are being served with a complaint to impose a civil (monetary) 
penalty.  
 
You have 7 days to request, in writing, a hearing on this violation. If you do request a hearing, you will 
need to come to the Agency and present information that refutes the alleged violation. If you do not 
request a hearing within 7 days of this complaint, the civil penalty of $50.00 will be added onto your 
water bill.  
 

You were cited for: 
 

  Outdoor  residential irrigation shall be restricted to Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays, 

before 7:00 a.m. and after 7:00 p.m. 

 Runoff such that water flows onto adjacent property, non-irrigated areas, private and public 

walkways, roadways, parking lots, or structures is prohibited. 

 
This is a violation of Desert Water Agency’s Ordinance No. 65. For a first violation within any 12-
month period, the civil penalty shall be $100 for a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional 
establishment or $50 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a second violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $200 for a multi-family 
residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $100 for a single-family residential customer. 
 
For a third and each subsequent violation within any 12-month period, the civil penalty shall be $500 for 
a multi-family residential, commercial or institutional establishment or $250 for a single-family 
residential customer.    
 
Failure to pay the civil penalty on your water bill may result in termination of water service. In addition, 
the Agency staff shall be authorized to discontinue water service for any violation of the Ordinance.  
 
 
 



 
 
If you have any additional questions, please contact us. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Ashley Metzger 
Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Desert Water Agency 
On behalf of General Manager Mark Krause 









 

2. Gordon McKiel, 2725 N. Biskra Rd 

 

a. On Friday, June 24 at 3:14 p.m. a Desert Water Agency representative 
observed water use violations at said address and reported them. 

i. Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 
ii. Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape  

 
b. Fine amount $100 

i. Single-family home 
ii. Second violation  

 
c. Reason for petition 

i. Power outage reset timer 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

















































































































9-A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JULY 19, 2016 

 
RE: JUNE 2016 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 33 percent reduction in total water 
production during June 2016 compared to the same month in 2013 – the baseline year 
used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to measure 
statewide conservation achievements. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative water savings 
June 2015 through June 2015 is 27.5 percent. 

The State Water Resources Control Board changed the way that they calculate 
mandatory restrictions. The new methodology factors in local supply. Starting in June, 
the adopted regulations do not require DWA to achieve mandatory reduction; however, 
DWA is still asking its customers to save 10-13% to help achieve long-term 
sustainability. DWA must still report its production to the state on a monthly basis. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for June 2016.  

Water Production for June 2016 2,494.4 AF 

Water Production for June 2013 3,742.4 AF 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 
and institutional users for the reporting month 

664.8 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

68.5% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 105,598 

Estimated R-GPCD  175.9 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

72 

  



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 
actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

84 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

75 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation 
of conservation rules? 

26 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data 
on a per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent 
population of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use 
in DWA’s service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the 
correct population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per 
Capita Per Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 
month of June was 417,719 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 87,909 
acre feet. If our recycled water production for June was taken into consideration against 
our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several percentage 
points higher. 

 



9-C 
STAFF REPORT  

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JULY 19, 2016  

 
  

RE:  WHITEWATER POWER PLANT – RENEWABLE MARKET 
 ADJUSTING TARIFF (RE-MAT) UPDATE 
 
After more than two years working with our consultant, JTN Energy, the California 
Independent System Operator (CAISO) granted a certificate of compliance for the 
Whitewater Hydro Plant on July 8, 2016, satisfying the CAISO interconnection portion of 
the Re-MAT contract; the plant is officially operating under the Re-MAT power purchase 
agreement.   
 
On July 5, 2016, Metropolitan Water District (MWD) began delivering the remaining 
Quantification Settlement Agreement (QSA) water to Coachella Valley Water District 
(CVWD) at the Whitewater Spreading Basin. The deliveries started with 50 cfs flow, 
increasing 50 cfs on July 6 and again on July 7, totaling 150 cfs. On July 8, 2016 at 
9:00am, the water was diverted to the Whitewater Hydro penstock and the flow was 
increased to 180 cfs, allowing Agency staff to start the generator with an output of 
1.1MW. MWD agreed to deliver water at this rate for the remaining QSA delivery of 
22,375 AC-FT.  
 
At a rate of 180 cfs (357 AC-FT/day), the Whitewater Hydro Plant should operate for the 
next 60 days with an anticipated total production of 1,464 MWh. Under the previous 
tariff, the amount of money generated would have been approximately $38,000; 
however, with the Re-MAT contract, the allocation should produce approximately 
$131,000, a 344% increase.  
 


	07 19 16 Board Agenda
	Item 2 062816 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 07 19 16 GM report
	JULY 19, 2016

	Item 4B 071416 Conserv PA minutes
	Item 4B 071416 Exec
	Item 6 07 19 16 Treasurer Rpt
	Item 7A 071916 Public Health Goals staff report
	ADP26E9.tmp
	RELATIVE TO PUBLIC HEALTH GOALS
	BACKGROUND
	WHAT ARE PHGs/MCLs/MCLGs?

	HEALTH RISK CATEGORIES
	BEST AVAILABLE TREATMENT TECHNOLOGY & COST ESTIMATES
	CONSTITUENTS DETECTED THAT EXCEED A PHG OR MCLG

	Coliform Bacteria
	RECOMMENDATION FOR FURTHER ACTION



	Item 7B 07 19 16 Randall Retirement Staff report
	ADP9777.tmp
	DEBBIE RANDALL


	Item 7C 07 19 16 Penalty hearings staff report
	Item 8A 07 19 16 PI Media
	Item 8B 07 19 16 PI Activities
	Item 9A 07 19 16 June 2016 Water Use Reduction Figures Staff Report
	Item 9C 071916 Whitewater Power Plan QSA Delivery



